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VISION: to be the number one lodging company in the world.

ABOVE: Historic Grosvenor House offers its guests a rare blend of fine British tradition and style, contemporary
facilities, first-class services and amenities, and spacious surroundings in an exclusive location overlooking
London’s Hyde Park. COVER: The JW Marriott Ihilani® Resort & Spa at Ko Olina overlooks a magnificent
lagoon, as well as one of the finest white sand beaches in all of Hawaii.



With more than 50 luxury hotels and resorts worldwide,
The Ritz-Carlton® Hotel Company offers business and
leisure travelers traditional and contemporary hotel
designs, world-class spas and championship golf. A
winner of the Malcolm Baldrige National Quality Award
and the J.D. Power and Associates North America 
Hotel Guest Satisfaction Index StudySM, the prestigious
Ritz-Carlton name has become synonymous with the
finest personal service.

Bulgari Hotels & Resorts®, developed in partnership with
jeweler and luxury goods designer Bulgari SpA, is a
collection of sophisticated and intimate luxury properties
located in gateway cities and exclusive resort destinations.
Each property features Bulgari’s striking contemporary
interpretation of true luxury in design and cuisine. The
first property, the Bulgari Hotel Milano, opened in May
2004 and has established itself as the place to stay and dine
in Milan. The Bulgari Resort Bali will open in late 2005
with 56 private villas, two restaurants and comprehensive
spa facilities in a spectacular sea-view setting.

JW Marriott® Hotels & Resorts is a distinctive collection
of Marriott’s most luxurious hotels providing the attentive
personal service, elegant accommodations and extensive
array of amenities required by the world’s most discerning
travelers. There are more than 30 JW Marriott Hotels &
Resorts properties located in key business and leisure
destinations throughout the world.

Marriott® Hotels & Resorts is our flagship brand,
designed to inspire guests who are driven to perform.
With more than 450 upscale hotels and resorts worldwide,
Marriott provides warm communities where guests
experience professionalism, purposeful luxury, and a
culture of caring service. The new Marriott guest rooms
will include the Revive® Collection of luxury bedding,
elegantly appointed bathrooms with aromatherapy
amenities, state-of-the-art flat-panel LCD TVs and high-
speed internet connectivity. Guests also enjoy destination
restaurants and upgraded fitness centers.

Marriott Resorts is our award-winning portfolio of
distinctive properties in the world’s most sought-after
destinations. Designed for travelers seeking memorable
and rewarding experiences, Marriott Resort locations offer
attentive service and exceptional amenities, with many
featuring world-class golf and spa facilities.

For travelers who find life on the road exhilarating,
Renaissance® Hotels & Resorts are unique places to
explore and savor. Come experience the fashionable 
and whimsical designs of Renaissance’s 130-plus hotels,
each with its own story to tell. The new guest rooms will
include flat-panel LCD TVs and high-speed connectivity;
amenities by LATHER®; and signature bedding with
luxurious duvets, sheets and oversized headboards.
Our service is crisp, attentive and respectful, and our
restaurants are well-defined with great, interesting food
and engaging service.

At Marriott Conference Centers, it’s not all work, no
play. Our Conference Centers provide special meeting
expertise and technical support as well as a variety of
social and leisure environments, a combination that
ensures creative and effective meetings for small- to
mid-size groups. Located near major cities, Marriott
Conference Centers offer distraction-free, retreat-style
surroundings for the “Ultimate Meeting Experience®. ”

Courtyard by Marriott®, the preeminent brand in the
upper-moderate price sector, has over 650 hotels in 
21 countries and territories. Courtyard’s customer-
focused design provides guests a consistently high-quality
experience. Courtyard’s enhanced breakfast menu offers 
a choice between a hot buffet or a selection of freshly
prepared items. Business travelers know they can expect a
great guest room that combines comfort and functionality,
including free high-speed internet access. Business 
and leisure travelers count on Courtyard to put them 
in control so they can leave feeling restored.

SpringHill Suites by Marriott® offers upper-moderate
priced suites that are spacious enough for working,
relaxing and preparing light meals. SpringHill Suites
combines Marriott hospitality with a newly enhanced
complimentary continental breakfast, which offers
seasonal items and hot choices. The suites are up to 
25 percent larger than traditional hotel rooms, and
feature a pantry area with a small refrigerator, sink and
microwave, and free high-speed internet access. There 
are over 120 locations across North America.

Fairfield Inn by Marriott® is Marriott’s most affordable
welcome, offering superior value for both business and
leisure travel. In addition to clean and comfortable guest
rooms, Fairfield Inn provides free high-speed internet 
and local calls, swimming pool and complimentary
continental breakfast. Fairfield Inn & SuitesSM properties
also include uniquely designed suites, an exercise room
and enhanced amenities. There are nearly 520 Fairfield Inn
and Fairfield Inn & Suites locations across the United States.

Residence Inn by Marriott®, the leading extended-stay
brand, helps guests feel connected while away from home.
Spacious suites with full kitchens and separate areas for
sleeping, working, relaxing and eating offer homelike
comfort and functionality. Guests experience a true sense
of community as they interact with our friendly staffs,
enjoy our enhanced complimentary hot breakfast, and
mingle at our evening social hours. There are more than
450 Residence Inn hotels.

TownePlace Suites by Marriott® offers an affordable
home for moderate-tier travelers on extended-stay trips.
With comfortable, casual suites and 24-hour staff,
TownePlace Suites provides a neighborhood-style living
experience at an exceptional value. A fully equipped
kitchen, ample work area, separate voice and data lines,
and free high-speed internet access in guest rooms help
guests balance work and personal time. An exercise room,
pool and barbecue offer guests a chance to relax. There
are 115 TownePlace Suites locations in the United States.

Marriott Executive Apartments® is the ideal answer when
international travel takes guests away from home a little
bit longer. Offering studios to three-bedroom apartments,
Marriott Executive Apartments delivers the comforts 
of home plus the indulgence of quality hotel services,
including around-the-clock staffing, housekeeping and
laundry service. The living areas offer fully equipped
kitchens and dedicated work and relaxation areas. There
are 10 Marriott Executive Apartments in key international
gateway cities.

Marriott ExecuStay®, a leading U.S. corporate apartment
provider, offers temporary housing to travelers who
prefer the spaciousness and privacy of an apartment.
ExecuStay finds the right solution for each traveler and
delivers a fully furnished, accessorized apartment with
as little as one day’s notice. Residents enjoy biweekly
housekeeping and exceptional 24-hour customer
service. ExecuStay apartments are located in most
major cities across the United States.

Marriott Vacation ClubSM International is a recognized
worldwide leader in the vacation ownership industry.
MVCI offers a lifetime of memorable vacations, with
flexible options including trade for Marriott Rewards®
points or exchange to other destinations around the
globe. Spacious one-, two- and three-bedroom villas
provide separate living and dining areas, master bedroom
with whirlpool tub, private balcony, full kitchen and
washer/dryer. There are more than 40 MVCI resorts in 
the United States, the Caribbean, Europe and Asia.

Horizons by Marriott Vacation Club® offers flexible
vacation ownership at an affordable price. Each
functional, family-friendly, two-bedroom villa
accommodates up to eight guests and includes many
comforts of home, such as roomy living and dining areas,
private balcony, full kitchen and washer/dryer. Horizons
resorts are thoughtfully designed to be active vacation
communities, with themed amenities and activities for all
ages. There are two Horizons locations: Orlando, Florida,
and Branson, Missouri.

Marriott Grand Residence Club® combines the advantages
of second home ownership with the services and amenities
of a fine hotel, as well as the benefits of exchange to
worldwide destinations. Locations include South Lake
Tahoe, California, and London’s Mayfair district.

The Ritz-Carlton Club® is a luxury-tier, fractional
ownership real estate product combining the benefits of
second home ownership with the personalized services
and amenities that are hallmarks of The Ritz-Carlton
Hotel Company. Designed as a private club, members
may stay at their home Club or choose from other 
Ritz-Carlton Clubs in ski, golf and beach destinations.
There are four Ritz-Carlton Club resorts: St. Thomas,
U.S. Virgin Islands; Aspen and Bachelor Gulch,
Colorado; and Jupiter, Florida.

SM

With 75 Marriott
International spas
worldwide, guests can
revive their minds and
bodies with a Thai
massage in Bangkok, a
Lomi Lomi massage in
Hawaii or a hot stone
massage in Phoenix.

LUXURY LOD GING

FULL-SERVICE LOD GING

SELECT-SERVICE LOD GING

EXTENDED-STAY AND CORPORATE LOD GING

OWNERSHIP RESORTS



brand leadership
marriott’s journey to becoming a global lodging leader has been a long and distinguished one. the company has more than 2,600 hotel, resort 

and timeshare properties, plus corporate housing apartments, across 17 distinctive brands. at the ritz-carlton, berlin (above), guests enjoy the

traditional style of a grand art déco hotel with modern comfort and unsurpassed service.
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T O  O U R  S H A R E H O L D E R S

These are exciting times for Marriott International. In 2004, business travel
rebounded, leisure demand reached new heights, and each of our 17 lodging and
timeshare brands benefited from the strong recovery. Marriott’s diluted earnings
per share from continuing operations increased 27 percent to $2.47, and—in
what is perhaps the measure that matters most—guest preference for our brands
continued to significantly lead our competitors. Altogether, these factors increased
our stock price to a historic high in 2004, on the strength of Marriott’s outstand-
ing associates, our superior business model and a culture committed to service.

Marriott’s management and franchise fee revenue totaled $873 million in
2004, 18 percent higher than 2003 levels. Cash flow from operations also totaled
nearly $900 million for the year, while dividends and share repurchases returned
a record $700 million to shareholders. Total debt, net of cash, declined 55 per-
cent in 2004 to $555 million, the lowest level since 1998. As the leading lodging
management and franchising company, the hotels and resorts in Marriott’s port-
folio have a total value of approximately $70 billion. However, as a manager 
and franchisor of these assets, Marriott’s return on its own invested capital was
14.1 percent in 2004, which we believe was substantially higher than other major
public U.S. lodging companies.

F O R C E S  O F  C H A N G E

The lodging industry is changing rapidly, and Marriott is well-positioned to
benefit. Strong owner and franchisee preference, as well as demand for our
brands, has allowed us to add strategically to our lodging portfolio with little
new Marriott-invested capital. Because of the power of our brands and our 
ability to generate value for our owners and franchisees, Marriott management
contracts are generally among those with the longest terms in the industry.

In the United States, lodging demand surged while supply growth remained
low during 2004. The U.S. lodging industry added only 60,000 rooms for a total

WILLIAM J. SHAW

PRESIDENT AND CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

J.W. MARRIOTT, JR.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

F I N A N C I A L  H I G H L I G H T S

2004 2003 Change

($ in millions, except per share amounts)

Revenues1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $10,099 $9,014 12%

Operating income. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 477 $ 377 27%

Income from continuing operations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 594 $ 476 25%

Diluted earnings per share1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.47 $ 1.94 27%

1 From continuing operations.
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global expansion
with hotels in nearly 70 countries and territories, marriott has significant worldwide distribution. we expect to add 25,000 to 30,000 rooms in

2005, as we continue our growth in global gateway cities and emerging markets. in china, marriott offers more than 25 hotels, including the 

jw marriott hotel shanghai at tomorrow square (above), which features luxurious accommodations and spectacular views of downtown shanghai.

of nearly 4.5 million rooms, and construction levels
remain at historic lows. On the other hand, demand for
U.S. lodging increased 4.5 percent during 2004, with an
additional 4.1 percent increase projected in 2005. Given
these trends, our long-term outlook for U.S. hotel rev-
enue per available room (RevPAR) growth has rarely
been more bullish.

The RevPAR of our comparable company-operated
North American properties increased 8.6 percent in 2004,
and our house profit margins increased 80 basis points.
This attracts yet more growth, as owners and franchisees 
of competitor hotels seek to improve their profitability by
converting to one of our flags. In 2004, nearly 40 percent of
the rooms we added were conversions from other brands,
driving customer preference and results for our entire sys-
tem. Marriott’s U.S. market share has more than doubled
over the past 15 years, rising from 4 to 8.4 percent.

Other trends track with the strategy we’ve put in
place. Globalization continues to reshape the lodging
industry as international travel continues to surge and
business and leisure travelers around the world show a
greater preference for established quality brands. The
World Travel & Tourism Council projects that global
travel demand will increase approximately 5 percent in
2005 and 4 percent annually through 2015, fueled in
part by a growing global middle class. The Chinese, in
particular, are beginning to travel abroad, and great new
opportunities will be born as that trend accelerates.

O P P O R T U N I T I E S  F O R  G R O W T H

With operations in nearly 70 countries and territories,
Marriott is well-prepared to serve this growing demand.
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In 2004, room nights of international guests visiting our U.S. hotels increased 
19 percent. Our non-U.S. hotels also sold 13 percent more room nights in 2004
than in 2003 due to stronger demand and broader distribution. That demand 
is driving expansion to new gateway cities outside the United States, as well as
new secondary and tertiary U.S. markets. In 2004, we added more than 160 new
hotels with more than 27,000 rooms. Among the many exciting openings were
the London Marriott Hotel West India Quay, the Sanya Marriott Resort & Spa in
China and the Renaissance St. Petersburg Baltic Hotel in Russia. As of year-end,
there were over 55,000 rooms in our development pipeline worldwide.

The increase in global wealth also contributed to much higher demand for
luxury lodging in 2004. Worldwide, The Ritz-Carlton’s revenue per available
room increased nearly 16 percent in constant dollars, the highest growth rate 
of all our brands. In response to this developing demographic trend, our 
JW Marriott Hotels & Resorts brand continues to grow and meet the demands
of the luxury market, and we opened the first hotel of our third luxury brand,
Bulgari Hotels & Resorts.

Business travel continues to be the engine that drives our revenue. Today,
more and more business travelers select hotels that help them be more productive.
Globally, Marriott also offers nearly 23 million square feet of space for meetings
and conventions, complemented by extraordinary food service and amenities.

Our timeshare business provides a lifetime of memorable vacations for leisure
travelers. With the largest market share in this rapidly growing $10 billion indus-
try, Marriott’s four timeshare brands provide a variety of vacation experiences.
The fastest growing of these brands, The Ritz-Carlton Club, offers fractional 
ownership of an elegantly furnished residence or second home in the finest
resort communities, with the deluxe, personalized services and amenities that
customers have come to expect from The Ritz-Carlton.

T H E  G U E S T  E X P E R I E N C E

At Marriott, our commitment to excellence means we’re always looking for 
new ways to delight our guests and bring them a total “experience.” This
inspired approach to hospitality, “the new look and feel of Marriott,” is influ-
enced by the world’s foremost innovations in design, technology, culinary
expertise, service and comfort.

This evolution is already evident across all of our brands, in new hotel
designs, exotic destinations, enhanced fitness centers, sumptuous spas and
expanded culinary offerings, as well as our new luxury bedding. From our 
luxury to moderately priced segments, each brand will be more upscale and
attuned to customer needs than ever before.

Customer demand for technology is rising as well, and we’re responding.
With high-speed internet access at nearly all of our hotels, and nearly 

2,000 hotels offering Wi-Fi, we lead the industry in keeping our customers con-
nected. We are developing and testing new systems, including check-in via lobby
kiosks and wireless handheld devices, as well as pre-arrival e-mail confirmations
that provide customers with local and hotel-specific information prior to their stay.

We’re also using technology behind the scenes to improve performance and
enhance guest satisfaction. Our reservation and yield management systems have
outperformed the industry for many years. We have the largest, fastest, most
user-friendly web site in the industry. Marriott.com attracts almost six million
visitors every month. In early 2006, we will pilot a consolidated inventory 
system—an industry first that will allow us to yield-manage guest room and
meeting space simultaneously.

S P I R I T  T O  S E R V E ®

And yet, for all of our innovations and superior properties, what makes Marriott
truly special is our “spirit to serve”—a spirit demonstrated by the outstanding
service of our 133,000 associates. They have earned the customer preference and
brand leadership we enjoy today. Leaders throughout Marriott are compensated
using a balanced scorecard that factors associate satisfaction, as well as customer
satisfaction and profitability, on the proven theory that if we take good care of
our associates, they’ll take good care of our guests.

As 2004 made clear and 2005 will prove again, the only thing constant about
the hospitality industry is change. The global marketplace is more competitive
than ever. Today’s customer wants it all: comfort and style, excitement and
sophistication, warmth and reliability. With the most comprehensive portfolio 
of brands, a very strong balance sheet, the industry’s most experienced manage-
ment team, owners and franchisees committed to excellence, and the most
skilled and attentive associates anywhere in the hospitality industry, Marriott
will continue to deliver superior value to guests and shareholders alike.

J.W. MARRIOTT, JR.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

WILLIAM J. SHAW

President and Chief Operating Officer

March 1, 2005



design innovation
newly designed guest rooms are more in tune with customer needs than ever before. the new marriott hotels & resorts guest room balances pro-

gressive design and style with timeless sophistication and evokes a sense of home, with state-of-the art technology and entertainment systems,

luxurious bedding, elegantly appointed bathrooms and custom aromatherapy amenities.
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customized experience
many of our hotels feature “destination” restaurants that are as popular with local clientele as they are with hotel guests. casual elegance,

celebrity chefs and distinctive concepts make each restaurant truly unique.
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Residence Inn (above), the brand that introduced

extended stay 30 years ago and remains the leader in

the category, is refreshing many of its properties with

modern residential touches, brighter color schemes and

updated kitchens and bathrooms.

Courtyard (right), the first upper-moderate hotel brand

designed “for business travelers, by business travelers,”

is also reinventing its hotels by introducing fresh, crisp

designs for guest rooms, lobbies and public spaces.



3 We are working with the International Federation of Red Cross and 
Red Crescent Societies, United Way International and other agencies to 
assist communities affected by natural disasters.

3 We marked the 22nd anniversary of Marriott’s support of Children’s 
Miracle Network, totaling over $35 million in company donations and 
associate fundraising.

S A F E G U A R D I N G  O U R  E N V I R O N M E N T

Marriott’s “spirit to serve” philosophy extends to critical environmental issues.

Our Environmentally Conscious Hospitality Operations (ECHO) program 

promotes eco-friendly practices at our hotels worldwide.

3 We became the first hospitality recipient of the Alliance to Save Energy’s Star
of Energy Efficiency Award, reflecting our efforts to improve the environment
through energy-saving practices and improved energy performance.

3 Marriott was named “Partner of the Year” by the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency for reducing greenhouse gas emissions by 64,000 tons annually.

3 Marriott associates volunteered for local environmental projects, such as
neighborhood clean-up campaigns, planting indigenous trees in local parks
and caring for the natural habitats of various species of wildlife.

our rich culture
marriott’s “spirit to serve” philosophy is all about taking care of people—being a great place to work, championing diversity, helping neighbors

in need, fostering education and career opportunities, and contributing to the success of our communities. our rich culture is the foundation

for our success, and we are proud to set the standard for our industry.

F O S T E R I N G  D I V E R S I T Y

Diversity is more than a goal at Marriott. From our associates to our vendors,

owners and franchisees, to our customers and communities, we thrive on the

differences that give our company its unique strength.

3 Marriott has been named a best company to work for and do business with by
many respected organizations and publications, including Fortune, Latina
Style, Working Mother, Essence, DiversityInc and the NAACP.

3 We surpassed our goal of 7 percent spending with minority- and women-
owned businesses, reaching 10 percent, and set a new goal of spending 
$1 billion over the next five years.

3 Over 10 percent of Marriott’s franchise properties are owned by minorities
and women. We are committed to doubling the number of properties owned
by minorities and women over the next five years.

E N R I C H I N G  O U R  C O M M U N I T I E S

Through our “Spirit To Serve Our Communities” program, we are fulfilling our

pledge to help make all of our communities better places to live and work.

3 We continue to partner with Habitat for Humanity International on home
builds throughout the world. In the U.S., we launched Fairfield Inn’s
“Hospitality at Home” program.

3 Marriott was recognized as a finalist for the U.S. Chamber of Commerce’s
prestigious 2004 Corporate Stewardship Large Business Award.
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B U S I N E S S  A N D  OV E RV I E W
We are a worldwide operator and franchisor of 2,632 hotels and related facilities. Our
operations are grouped into five business segments: Full-Service Lodging, Select-
Service Lodging, Extended-Stay Lodging, Timeshare and Synthetic Fuel. In our Lodging
business, we operate, develop and franchise under 13 separate brand names in 66 coun-
tries and territories. We also operate and develop Marriott timeshare properties under
four separate brand names.

We earn base, incentive and franchise fees based upon the terms of our management
and franchise agreements. Revenues are also generated from the following sources asso-
ciated with our timeshare business: (1) selling timeshare intervals, (2) operating the
resorts, and (3) financing customer purchases of timesharing intervals. In addition, we
earn revenues and generate tax credits from our synthetic fuel joint ventures.

We evaluate the performance of our segments based primarily on the results of the
segment without allocating corporate expenses, interest expense and interest income.
With the exception of our Synthetic Fuel segment, we do not allocate income taxes to
our segments. As timeshare note sales are an integral part of the timeshare business, we
include timeshare note sale gains in our timeshare segment results, and we allocate other
gains as well as equity income (losses) from our joint ventures to each of our segments.

Lodging supply growth in the United States was low during 2004, while demand
growth was high. In the United States, demand was strong in the Eastern and Western
regions, while the Midwestern and South Central regions experienced more moderate
increases in demand. Demand associated with business travel improved steadily in
2004, and leisure demand remained high. The weak U.S. dollar in relation to other cur-
rencies, particularly the euro, resulted in increased travel into the U.S. as overseas trips
for many international travelers were less expensive. Conversely, many U.S. vacationers
who might have traveled abroad, traveled domestically instead, as the weak dollar made
overseas trips more costly.

Outside of the U.S. we experienced stronger demand versus the prior year, particularly
in Asia and the Middle East. While demand in Latin America and the Caribbean was also
good, Europe remains a challenge, as some economies have been slow to rebound.

We focus on increasing value for the consumer and “selling the way the customer
wants to buy.” Our Look No Further® Best Rate Guarantee, strong Marriott Rewards loy-
alty program, and information-rich, easy-to-use web site encourage customers to make
reservations through Marriott.com. We have complete control over our inventory and
pricing and utilize online agents on an as-needed basis. The shift of hotel bookings to our
web site from other online channels results in higher revenue, margins and profitability.

By the end of 2004, we had high-speed internet access available in over 2,400 hotels,
far outpacing our competition, and we had wireless internet access in lobbies, meeting
rooms and public spaces in more than 1,900 hotels.

C O N S O L I DAT E D  R E S U LT S
The following discussion presents an analysis of results of our operations for fiscal
years ended December 31, 2004, January 2, 2004 (which we refer to as “2003”), and
January 3, 2003 (which we refer to as “2002”).

C O N T I N U I N G  O P E R AT I O N S

Revenues
2004 COMPARED TO 2003

Revenues increased 12 percent to $10,099 million in 2004, primarily reflecting higher
fees related to increased demand for hotel rooms and unit expansion, as well as strong
sales in our Timeshare segment.

2003 COMPARED TO 2002

Revenues increased 7 percent to $9,014 million in 2003, reflecting revenue from new
lodging properties, partially offset by lower demand for hotel rooms and consequently
lower fees to us.

Operating Income
2004 COMPARED TO 2003

Operating income increased $100 million to $477 million in 2004. The increase is
primarily due to higher fees, which are related both to stronger REVPAR, driven by
increased occupancy and average daily rate, and to the growth in the number of rooms,
and strong timeshare results, which are mainly attributable to strong demand and
improved margins, partially offset by higher general and administrative expenses.
General, administrative and other expenses increased $84 million in 2004 to $607 mil-
lion, primarily reflecting higher administrative expenses in both our lodging ($55 mil-
lion) and timeshare businesses ($24 million), primarily associated with increased
overhead costs related to the Company’s unit growth and increased development costs
primarily associated with our Timeshare segment, and a $10 million reduction in for-
eign exchange gains, offset by $6 million of lower litigation expenses.

2003 COMPARED TO 2002

Operating income increased 17 percent to $377 million in 2003. The favorable compar-
isons to 2002 include the impact of the $50 million write down of goodwill recorded 
in 2002 associated with our ExecuStay business, the 2003 receipt of $36 million of
insurance proceeds associated with lost management fees resulting from the destruc-
tion of the Marriott World Trade Center hotel and lower 2003 operating losses from
our synthetic fuel operation. In 2003, the synthetic fuel business generated operating
losses of $104 million, compared to $134 million in 2002. Operating income in 2003
was hurt by $53 million of lower incentive fees, which resulted from the weak operating
environment in domestic lodging. General, administrative and other expenses increased
$13 million in 2003 to $523 million, reflecting higher litigation expenses related to two
continuing and previously disclosed lawsuits, partially offset by the impact of the addi-
tional week in 2002 (our 2002 fiscal year included 53 weeks compared to 52 weeks in
2003). The expenses also reflect foreign exchange gains of $7 million, compared to
losses of $6 million in 2002.

11 MARRIOTT INTERNATIONAL, INC.
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Gains and Other Income
The following table shows our gains and other income for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2004, January 2, 2004, and January 3, 2003.

($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002

Timeshare note sale gains  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 64 $ 64 $ 60

Synthetic fuel earn-out payments received, net  . . . . . . . . 28 — —

Gains on sales of real estate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 44 21 28

Gains on sales of joint venture investments  . . . . . . . . . . . 19 21 44

Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9 — —

$164 $106 $132

Interest Expense
2004 COMPARED TO 2003

Interest expense decreased $11 million to $99 million, reflecting the repayment of
$234 million of senior debt in the fourth quarter of 2003 and other subsequent debt
reductions, partially offset by lower capitalized interest resulting from fewer projects
under construction, primarily related to our Timeshare segment.

2003 COMPARED TO 2002

Interest expense increased $24 million to $110 million, reflecting interest on the mort-
gage debt assumed in the fourth quarter of 2002 associated with the acquisition of
14 senior living communities, and lower capitalized interest resulting from fewer proj-
ects under construction, primarily related to our Timeshare segment. In the fourth
quarter of 2003, $234 million of senior debt was repaid. The weighted average interest
rate on the repaid debt was 7 percent.

Interest Income, Provision for Loan Losses, and Income Tax
2004 COMPARED TO 2003

Interest income, before the provision for loan losses, increased $17 million (13 percent)
to $146 million, reflecting higher loan balances, including the $200 million note col-
lected in the third quarter of 2004 related to the acquisition by Cendant Corporation 
of our interest in the Two Flags joint venture and higher interest rates. We recognized
$9 million of interest income associated with the $200 million note, which was issued
early in the 2004 second quarter. Our provision for loan losses for 2004 was a benefit of
$8 million and includes $3 million of reserves for loans deemed uncollectible at three
hotels, offset by the reversal of $11 million of reserves no longer deemed necessary.

Income from continuing operations before income taxes generated a tax provision
of $100 million in 2004, compared to a tax benefit of $43 million in 2003. The differ-
ence is primarily attributable to the impact of the synthetic fuel joint ventures, which
generated a tax benefit and tax credits of $165 million in 2004, compared to $245 mil-
lion in 2003 and to higher pre-tax income. In the third quarter of 2003, we sold a 
50 percent interest in our synthetic fuel joint ventures, and we currently consolidate 
the joint ventures.

2003 COMPARED TO 2002

Interest income increased $7 million (6 percent) to $129 million. Our provision for
loan losses for 2003 was $7 million and includes $15 million of reserves for loans
deemed uncollectible at six hotels, offset by the reversal of $8 million of reserves no
longer deemed necessary.

Income from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interest gen-
erated a tax benefit of $43 million in 2003, compared to a tax provision of $32 million
in 2002. The difference is primarily attributable to the impact of our synthetic fuel
operation, which generated a tax benefit and tax credits of $245 million in 2003, com-
pared to $208 million in 2002. Excluding the impact of the synthetic fuel operation, our
pre-tax income was lower in 2003, which also contributed to the favorable tax impact.

Our effective tax rate for discontinued operations increased from 15.7 percent to 
39 percent due to the impact of the taxes in 2002 associated with the sale of stock in
connection with the disposal of our Senior Living Services business.

Minority Interest
Minority interest increased from an expense of $55 million in 2003 to a benefit of
$40 million in 2004, primarily as a result of the change in the ownership structure of
the synthetic fuel joint ventures following our sale of 50 percent of our interest in the
joint ventures. Due to the purchaser’s put option, which expired on November 6, 2003,
minority interest for 2003 reflected our partner’s share of the synthetic fuel operating
losses and its share of the associated tax benefit, along with its share of the tax credits
from the June 21, 2003, sale date through the put option’s expiration date, when we
began accounting for the ventures under the equity method of accounting. For 2004,
minority interest reflects our partner’s share of the synthetic fuel losses from March 26,
2004 (when we began consolidating the ventures due to the adoption of FIN 46(R)),
through year-end. For additional information, see the discussion relating to our
“Synthetic Fuel” segment on page 19.

Income from Continuing Operations
2004 COMPARED TO 2003

Income from continuing operations increased 25 percent to $594 million, and diluted
earnings per share from continuing operations increased 27 percent to $2.47. The
favorable results were primarily driven by strong hotel demand, new unit growth,
strong timeshare results, higher interest income reflecting higher balances and rates,
lower interest expense due to debt reductions, lower loan loss provisions, stronger
synthetic fuel results and increased gains of $58 million, partially offset by higher
income taxes excluding the synthetic fuel impact, and higher general and administra-
tive expenses.

2003 COMPARED TO 2002

Income from continuing operations increased 8 percent to $476 million, and diluted
earnings per share from continuing operations advanced 11 percent to $1.94. Synthetic
fuel operations contributed $96 million in 2003 compared to $74 million in 2002. Our
lodging financial results declined $5 million to $702 million in 2003. The comparisons
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from 2002 benefit from the $50 million pre-tax charge to write down acquisition good-
will for ExecuStay in 2002, offset by the $44 million pre-tax gain on the sale of our invest-
ment in Interval International in 2002, and further benefit from our 2003 receipt of a $36
million insurance settlement for lost management fees associated with the New York
Marriott World Trade Center hotel, which was destroyed in the 2001 terrorist attacks.

Marriott Lodging
We consider lodging revenues and lodging financial results to be meaningful indicators
of our performance because they measure our growth in profitability as a lodging com-
pany and enable investors to compare the sales and results of our lodging operations to
those of other lodging companies.

Revenues

($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002

Full-Service  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 6,611 $5,876 $5,508

Select-Service  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,118 1,000 967

Extended-Stay  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 547 557 600

Timeshare  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,502 1,279 1,147

Total lodging  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,778 8,712 8,222

Synthetic Fuel  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 321 302 193

$10,099 $9,014 $8,415

Income from Continuing Operations

($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002

Full-Service  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 426 $ 407 $ 397

Select-Service . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 140 99 130

Extended-Stay  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 66 47 (3)

Timeshare . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 203 149 183

Total lodging financial results  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 835 702 707

Synthetic Fuel (after-tax)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 107 96 74

Unallocated corporate expenses  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (138) (132) (126)

Interest income, provision for loan losses and 
interest expense  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 55 12 24

Income taxes (excluding Synthetic Fuel)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . (265) (202) (240)

$ 594 $ 476 $ 439

2004 COMPARED TO 2003

Lodging, which includes our Full-Service, Select-Service, Extended-Stay and Timeshare
segments, reported financial results of $835 million in 2004, compared to $702 million
in 2003, and revenues of $9,778 million in 2004, a 12 percent increase from revenues of
$8,712 million in 2003. The results reflect an 18 percent increase in base, franchise and
incentive fees from $742 million in 2003 to $873 million in 2004, favorable timeshare
results and increased gains and joint venture results of $36 million. The increase in base
and franchise fees was driven by higher REVPAR for comparable rooms, primarily
resulting from both domestic and international occupancy and average daily rate
increases and new unit growth. Systemwide REVPAR for comparable North American
properties increased 8.5 percent, and REVPAR for our comparable North American
company-operated properties increased 8.6 percent. Systemwide REVPAR for compara-
ble international properties, including The Ritz-Carlton, increased 14.2 percent, and
REVPAR for comparable international company-operated properties, including The
Ritz-Carlton, increased 16.6 percent. The increase in incentive management fees during
the year primarily reflects the impact of increased international demand, particularly in
Asia and the Middle East, and increased business at properties throughout North
America. We have added 166 properties (27,038 rooms) and deflagged 42 properties
(7,335 rooms) since year-end 2003. Most of the deflagged properties were Fairfield
Inns. In addition, 210 properties (28,081 rooms) exited our system as a result of the
sale of our Ramada International Hotels & Resorts franchised brand. Worldwide
REVPAR for comparable company-operated properties increased 10.5 percent, while
worldwide REVPAR for comparable systemwide properties increased 9.6 percent.

2003 COMPARED TO 2002

Lodging reported financial results of $702 million in 2003, compared to $707 million 
in 2002, and revenues of $8,712 million in 2003, a 6 percent increase, compared to rev-
enues of $8,222 million in 2002. The 2003 lodging revenue and financial results include
the receipt of a $36 million insurance settlement for lost revenues associated with the
New York Marriott World Trade Center hotel. Our revenues from base management
fees totaled $388 million, an increase of 2 percent, reflecting 3 percent growth in the
number of managed rooms and a 1.9 percent decline in REVPAR for our North
American managed hotels. Incentive management fees were $109 million, a decline of
33 percent, reflecting lower property-level house profit. House profit margins declined
2.7 percentage points, largely due to lower average room rates, higher wages, insurance
and utility costs, and lower telephone profits, offset by continued productivity improve-
ments. Franchise fees totaled $245 million, an increase of 6 percent. The comparison to
2002 includes the impact of the $50 million pre-tax write down of ExecuStay goodwill
recorded in 2002, partially offset by a $44 million pre-tax gain related to the sale of
our investment in Interval International.
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Lodging Development
We opened 144 properties totaling 24,380 rooms, excluding Ramada International,
across our brands in 2004, and 42 properties (7,335 rooms) were deflagged and exited
the system. In addition, 210 properties (28,081 rooms) exited our system as a result of
the sale of our Ramada International Hotels & Resorts franchised brand in 2004.
Highlights of the year included:

3 We converted 64 properties (10,565 rooms), or 39 percent of our total room
additions for the year, from other brands.

3 We opened over 30 percent of new rooms outside the United States.
3 We added 109 properties (12,859 rooms) to our Select-Service and Extended-

Stay brands.
3 We opened our first Bulgari Hotel & Resort in Milan, Italy, in May 2004. The sec-

ond property is expected to open in Bali in 2005.
3 We opened three new Marriott Vacation Club International properties in Aruba;

Phoenix, Arizona; and Myrtle Beach, South Carolina.

We currently have more than 55,000 rooms in our development pipeline and expect
to add 25,000 to 30,000 hotel rooms and timeshare units to our system in 2005. We
expect to deflag approximately 4,000 rooms during 2005. These growth plans are sub-
ject to numerous risks and uncertainties, many of which are outside of our control.
See “Liquidity and Capital Resources,” “Forward-Looking Statements” and “Risks and
Uncertainties” below.

R E V PA R
We consider Revenue per Available Room (REVPAR) to be a meaningful indicator of
our performance because it measures the period-over-period change in room revenues
for comparable properties. We calculate REVPAR by dividing room sales for compara-
ble properties by room nights available to guests for the period. REVPAR may not be
comparable to similarly titled measures, such as revenues.

The following table shows occupancy, average daily rate and REVPAR for each of
our comparable principal established brands. We have not presented statistics for com-
pany-operated North American Fairfield Inn and SpringHill Suites properties here (or
in the comparable information for the prior years presented later in this report)
because we operate only a limited number of properties, as both of these brands are
predominantly franchised and such information would not be meaningful for those
brands (identified as “nm” in the tables below). Systemwide statistics include data from
our franchised properties, in addition to our owned, leased and managed properties.

For North American properties (except for The Ritz-Carlton, which includes
January through December), the occupancy, average daily rate and REVPAR statistics
used throughout this report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, include the
period from January 3, 2004, through December 31, 2004, while the statistics for the
fiscal year ended January 2, 2004, include the period from January 4, 2003, through
January 2, 2004.

Comparable Company-Operated Comparable Systemwide
North American Properties North American Properties

2004 Change vs. 2003 2004 Change vs. 2003

MARRIOTT HOTELS & RESORTS (1)

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 72.0% 2.8% pts. 70.1% 2.8% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $143.70 3.3% $135.15 3.3%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $103.46 7.4% $ 94.77 7.6%

THE RITZ-CARLTON (2)

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 69.2% 4.3% pts. 69.2% 4.3% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $257.16 5.9% $257.16 5.9%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $177.96 12.9% $177.96 12.9%

RENAISSANCE HOTELS & RESORTS

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 69.6% 4.3% pts. 69.1% 4.2% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $135.54 1.7% $128.67 2.3%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 94.30 8.4% $ 88.92 8.9%

COMPOSITE — FULL-SERVICE (3)

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 71.3% 3.2% pts. 69.9% 3.1% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $153.66 3.6% $142.80 3.6%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $109.62 8.4% $ 99.82 8.4%

RESIDENCE INN

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 79.0% 2.7% pts. 78.6% 2.9% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 99.49 3.8% $ 97.33 3.2%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 78.59 7.4% $ 76.52 7.1%

COURTYARD

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 70.3% 3.2% pts. 71.4% 3.3% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 96.30 4.6% $ 97.18 4.9%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 67.66 9.6% $ 69.35 10.0%

FAIRFIELD INN

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . nm nm 66.6% 1.9% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . nm nm $ 67.97 3.1%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . nm nm $ 45.29 6.2%

TOWNEPLACE SUITES

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 74.1% 3.7% pts. 74.9% 4.3% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 65.77 4.0% $ 65.18 2.7%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 48.71 9.5% $ 48.81 9.0%

SPRINGHILL SUITES

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . nm nm 71.5% 4.2% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . nm nm $ 83.97 4.2%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . nm nm $ 60.04 10.6%

COMPOSITE — SELECT-SERVICE AND EXTENDED-STAY (4)

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 72.6% 3.1% pts. 72.2% 3.0% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 94.52 4.4% $ 87.89 4.0%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 68.66 9.1% $ 63.42 8.5%

COMPOSITE — ALL (5)

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 71.8% 3.2% pts. 71.2% 3.1% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $132.36 3.8% $111.49 3.8%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 95.04 8.6% $ 79.35 8.5%

(1) Marriott Hotels & Resorts includes our JW Marriott Hotels & Resorts brand.

(2) Statistics for The Ritz-Carlton are for January through December.

(3) Full-Service composite statistics include properties for the Marriott Hotels & Resorts, Renaissance Hotels & Resorts and The Ritz-Carlton brands.

(4) Select-Service and Extended-Stay composite statistics include properties for the Courtyard, Residence Inn, TownePlace Suites, Fairfield Inn
and SpringHill Suites brands.

(5) Composite—All statistics include properties for the Marriott Hotels & Resorts, Renaissance Hotels & Resorts, The Ritz-Carlton, Courtyard,
Residence Inn, TownePlace Suites, Fairfield Inn and SpringHill Suites brands.
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Systemwide international statistics by region are based on comparable worldwide
units, excluding North America. The following table shows occupancy, average daily
rate and REVPAR for international properties by region/brand.

Comparable Company-Operated Comparable Systemwide
International Properties (1), (2) International Properties (1), (2)

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, Change vs. December 31, Change vs.

2004 2003 2004 2003

CARIBBEAN AND LATIN AMERICA

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 71.2% 4.3% pts. 69.7% 4.3% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $138.98 8.0% $131.61 7.7%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 98.91 14.9% $ 91.76 14.7%

CONTINENTAL EUROPE

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 70.8% 2.8% pts. 68.8% 3.7% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $130.49 2.6% $130.74 2.2%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 92.38 6.8% $ 89.91 8.0%

UNITED KINGDOM

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 76.9% 2.0% pts. 74.4% 2.3% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $173.48 7.8% $142.47 3.1%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $133.37 10.7% $106.01 6.4%

MIDDLE EAST AND AFRICA

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 73.2% 8.1% pts. 73.2% 8.1% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 83.44 13.8% $ 83.44 13.8%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 61.10 28.1% $ 61.10 28.1%

ASIA PACIFIC (3)

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 75.5% 9.8% pts. 76.4% 9.0% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 96.67 10.5% $ 99.61 8.2%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 72.98 27.0% $ 76.11 22.6%

THE RITZ-CARLTON INTERNATIONAL

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 71.0% 10.3% pts. 71.0% 10.3% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $205.06 3.8% $205.06 3.8%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $145.68 21.3% $145.68 21.3%

TOTAL COMPOSITE INTERNATIONAL (4)

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 73.3% 6.6% pts. 72.9% 6.0% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $129.35 6.0% $128.44 4.8%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 94.75 16.6% $ 93.61 14.2%

TOTAL WORLDWIDE (5)

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 72.2% 4.0% pts. 71.5% 3.6% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $131.58 4.3% $114.61 4.1%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 94.97 10.5% $ 81.93 9.6%

(1) International financial results are reported on a period-end basis, while international statistics are reported on a month-end basis.

(2) The comparison to 2003 is on a currency-neutral basis and includes results for January through December.

(3) Excludes Hawaii.

(4) Includes Hawaii.

(5) Includes international statistics for the twelve months ended December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003 and North American statistics 
for the fifty-two weeks ended December 31, 2004 and January 2, 2004.

The following table shows occupancy, average daily rate and REVPAR for each of
our principal established brands.

Comparable Company-Operated Comparable Systemwide
North American Properties North American Properties

2003 Change vs. 2002 2003 Change vs. 2002

MARRIOTT HOTELS & RESORTS (1)

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 69.3% –0.5% pts. 67.6% –0.4% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $135.42 –2.1% $128.53 –1.8%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 93.81 –2.8% $ 86.87 –2.4%

THE RITZ-CARLTON (2)

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 65.7% 1.1% pts. 65.7% 1.1% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $231.12 –0.8% $231.12 –0.8%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $151.85 1.0% $151.85 1.0%

RENAISSANCE HOTELS & RESORTS

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 65.8% 0.9% pts. 65.3% 1.5% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $132.12 –1.8% $123.97 –2.2%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 86.99 –0.4% $ 80.92 0.1%

COMPOSITE — FULL-SERVICE (3)

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 68.4% –0.1% pts. 67.1% 0.0% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $144.17 –1.6% $134.92 –1.6%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 98.65 –1.8% $ 90.57 –1.6%

RESIDENCE INN

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 77.0% –0.3% pts. 76.2% 0.2% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 94.94 –1.9% $ 93.85 –1.4%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 73.09 –2.3% $ 71.47 –1.1%

COURTYARD

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 67.6% –1.0% pts. 68.5% –0.6% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 93.16 –1.2% $ 92.90 –0.6%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 63.01 –2.7% $ 63.65 –1.4%

FAIRFIELD INN

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . nm nm 64.1% –0.3% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . nm nm $ 64.28 0.2%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . nm nm $ 41.22 –0.4%

TOWNEPLACE SUITES

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 70.3% –2.0% pts. 70.9% 0.0% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 63.24 1.8% $ 63.34 –0.2%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 44.48 –1.0% $ 44.89 –0.1%

SPRINGHILL SUITES

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . nm nm 68.4% 1.3% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . nm nm $ 80.38 1.3%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . nm nm $ 54.94 3.2%

COMPOSITE — SELECT-SERVICE AND EXTENDED-STAY (4)

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 70.0% –0.8% pts. 69.2% –0.2% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 90.98 –1.1% $ 83.70 –0.6%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 63.64 –2.2% $ 57.95 –0.8%

COMPOSITE — ALL (5)

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 69.0% –0.4% pts. 68.3% –0.1% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $124.45 –1.4% $105.86 –1.1%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 85.85 –1.9% $ 72.31 –1.3%

(1) Marriott Hotels & Resorts includes our JW Marriott Hotels & Resorts brand.

(2) Statistics for The Ritz-Carlton are for January through December.

(3) Full-Service composite statistics include properties for the Marriott Hotels & Resorts, Renaissance Hotels & Resorts and 
The Ritz-Carlton brands.

(4) Select-Service and Extended-Stay composite statistics include properties for the Courtyard, Residence Inn, TownePlace Suites, Fairfield Inn
and SpringHill Suites brands.

(5) Composite—All statistics include properties for the Marriott Hotels & Resorts, Renaissance Hotels & Resorts, The Ritz-Carlton, Courtyard,
Residence Inn, TownePlace Suites, Fairfield Inn and SpringHill Suites brands.
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Occupancy, average daily rate, and REVPAR by region/brand for international prop-
erties are shown in the following table.

Comparable Company-Operated Comparable Systemwide
International Properties (1), (2) International Properties (1), (2)

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, Change vs. December 31, Change vs.

2003 2002 2003 2002

CARIBBEAN AND LATIN AMERICA

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 67.5% 4.2% pts. 65.3% 3.8% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $126.45 2.7% $121.64 2.2%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 85.32 9.5% $ 79.49 8.5%

CONTINENTAL EUROPE

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 67.9% 0.3% pts. 64.9% 0.3% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $117.79 –5.4% $119.40 –4.0%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 79.92 –4.9% $ 77.50 –3.5%

UNITED KINGDOM

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 76.6% –0.7% pts. 72.3% –0.8% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $148.14 –1.5% $125.44 –3.2%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $113.48 –2.4% $ 90.71 –4.2%

MIDDLE EAST AND AFRICA

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 66.5% 0.4% pts. 64.3% 0.6% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 71.39 14.9% $ 71.58 14.6%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 47.49 15.7% $ 46.00 15.8%

ASIA PACIFIC (3)

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 65.5% –6.7% pts. 67.8% –5.3% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 85.25 –1.4% $ 93.13 0.5%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 55.86 –10.5% $ 63.10 –6.8%

THE RITZ-CARLTON INTERNATIONAL

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 60.8% –5.9% pts. 60.8% –5.9% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $188.91 –0.2% $188.91 –0.2%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $114.88 –9.0% $114.88 –9.0%

TOTAL COMPOSITE INTERNATIONAL (4)

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 66.9% –1.8% pts. 67.0% –1.4% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $117.27 –0.4% $117.54 –0.3%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 78.46 –3.0% $ 78.73 –2.4%

TOTAL WORLDWIDE (5)

Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 68.4% –0.7% pts. 68.1% –0.4% pts.
Average daily rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $122.62 –1.1% $108.03 –1.0%
REVPAR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 83.93 –2.2% $ 73.52 –1.5%

(1) International financial results are reported on a period-end basis, while international statistics are reported on a month-end basis.

(2) The comparison to 2002 is on a currency-neutral basis and includes results for January through December.

(3) Excludes Hawaii.

(4) Includes Hawaii.

(5) Includes international statistics for the twelve months ended December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002 and North American statistics for
the fifty-two and fifty-three weeks ended January 2, 2004 and January 3, 2003, respectively.

The adjacent graph shows REVPAR for North
American Comparable Company-Operated
“Composite—All” properties (which includes
Marriott Hotels & Resorts, Renaissance Hotels &
Resorts, The Ritz-Carlton, Courtyard, Residence Inn,
TownePlace Suites, Fairfield Inn and SpringHill Suites
brands) for the last five fiscal years:

Full-Service Lodging

Annual Change
($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002 2004/2003 2003/2002

Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . $6,611 $5,876 $5,508 13% 7%

Segment results  . . . . . . . $ 426 $ 407 $ 397 5% 3%

2004 COMPARED TO 2003

Full-Service Lodging includes our Marriott Hotels & Resorts, The Ritz-Carlton,
Renaissance Hotels & Resorts, Ramada International and Bulgari Hotels & Resorts
brands. The 2004 segment results reflect an $85 million increase in base management,
incentive management and franchise fees, partially offset by $46 million of increased
administrative costs, including costs related to unit growth and development, and the
receipt in 2003 of $36 million of insurance proceeds. The increase in fees is largely due
to stronger REVPAR, driven by occupancy and rate increases, and the growth in the
number of rooms. Since year-end 2003, across our Full-Service Lodging segment, we
have added 33 hotels (10,212 rooms), and deflagged six hotels (2,860 rooms) excluding
Ramada International. As a result of the sale of our Ramada International Hotels &
Resorts franchised brand, 210 properties (28,081 rooms) exited our system in 2004.
The ongoing impact of this sale is not expected to be material to the Company.

Gains were up $7 million, primarily due to the exercise by Cendant of its option to
redeem our interest in the Two Flags joint venture, which generated a gain of $13 mil-
lion and a note receivable, which was repaid, generating a gain of $5 million. Joint
venture results were up $2 million compared to the prior year. For 2003, our equity
earnings included $24 million, attributable to our interest in the Two Flags joint ven-
ture, while our equity in earnings for 2004 reflects only a $6 million impact due to the
redemption of our interest. The improved business environment contributed to the
improvement in joint venture results for 2004, offsetting the decline attributable to 
the Two Flags joint venture.
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REVPAR for Full-Service Lodging comparable company-operated North American
hotels increased 8.4 percent to $109.62. Occupancy for these hotels increased to 
71.3 percent, while average daily rates increased 3.6 percent to $153.66.

Demand associated with our international operations was strong across most
regions, generating a 16.6 percent REVPAR increase for comparable company-operated
hotels including The Ritz-Carlton. Occupancy increased 6.6 percentage points, while
average daily rates increased to $129.35. Financial results increased 37 percent to 
$140 million, due to stronger demand, particularly in China, Hong Kong, Brazil and
Egypt. The European markets generally remain challenging as the economies have 
been slow to rebound.

2003 COMPARED TO 2002

The 3 percent increase in the Full-Service segment results includes the $36 million
insurance payment received for lost management fees in connection with the loss of
the New York Marriott World Trade Center hotel in the September 11, 2001, terrorist
attacks. The 2003 results also reflect an $18 million increase in base management and
franchise fees, largely due to the growth in the number of rooms. Across our Full-
Service Lodging segment, we added 88 hotels (18,442 rooms) and deflagged 15 hotels
(3,152 rooms). We typically earn incentive fees only after a managed hotel achieves a
minimum level of owner profitability. As a result, lower revenue and lower property-
level margins have reduced the number of hotels from which we earn incentive man-
agement fees. As a result, full-service incentive fees declined $41 million in 2003.

REVPAR for Full-Service Lodging North American systemwide hotels declined 
1.6 percent to $90.57. Occupancy for these hotels was flat at 67.1 percent, while average
daily rates declined 1.6 percent to $134.92.

Financial results for our international operations increased 9 percent to $102 mil-
lion, reflecting $21 million of gains associated with the sale of our interests in three
joint ventures and favorable foreign exchange rates, partially offset by an $8 million
charge for guarantee fundings related to a hotel in Istanbul, a $7 million charge to write
down our investment in a joint venture that sold a hotel at a loss in January 2004, and
the impact of the war and Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARS) on international
travel earlier in the year. REVPAR for our international systemwide hotels declined 
2.4 percent. Occupancy declined 1.4 percentage points, while average daily rates
remained relatively flat at $117.54.

Select-Service Lodging

Annual Change
($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002 2004/2003 2003/2002

Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,118 $1,000 $967 12% 3%

Segment results  . . . . . . . $ 140 $ 99 $130 41% –24%

2004 COMPARED TO 2003

Select-Service Lodging includes our Courtyard, Fairfield Inn and SpringHill Suites
brands. The increase in revenues over the prior year reflects stronger REVPAR, driven
by occupancy and rate increases, and the growth in the number of rooms across our
select-service brands. Base management, incentive management and franchise fees
increased $31 million, and gains were $19 million higher than the prior year, reflecting
land sales during the year as well as recognition of deferred gains associated with prop-
erties we previously owned. Joint venture results increased by $5 million as a result of
the strong business environment. These increases were partially offset by an increase 
in administrative costs of $13 million. Most of the increase in administrative costs is
associated with a transaction related to our Courtyard joint venture (discussed more
fully below in “Liquidity and Capital Resources” under the heading “Courtyard Joint
Venture”). We expect to enter into a new long-term management agreement with the
joint venture in early 2005. As the termination of the existing management agreement
is probable, in 2004 we wrote off our deferred contract acquisition costs related to 
the existing contract, resulting in a charge of $13 million. Across our Select-Service
Lodging segment, we have added 89 hotels (10,556 rooms) and deflagged 35 hotels
(4,395 rooms) since year-end 2003.

2003 COMPARED TO 2002

The $31 million decrease in the Select-Service Lodging segment results reflects the
impact of a $9 million reduction in base management, incentive management and
franchise fees. The results also include $14 million of higher equity losses, primarily
from our Courtyard joint venture, formed in 2000, which owns 120 Courtyard hotels.

In 2003, across our Select-Service Lodging segment, we added 66 hotels (8,054
rooms) and deflagged four hotels (731 rooms). Over 90 percent of the gross room
additions were franchised.

Extended-Stay Lodging

Annual Change
($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002 2004/2003 2003/2002

Revenues  . . . . . . . . . . . . . $547 $557 $600 –2% –7%

Segment results  . . . . . . . . $ 66 $ 47 $ (3) 40% nm
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2004 COMPARED TO 2003

Extended-Stay Lodging includes our Residence Inn, TownePlace Suites, Marriott Executive
Apartments and Marriott ExecuStay brands. The decline in revenue is primarily attrib-
utable to the shift in the ExecuStay business from management to franchising. We
entered into more than 20 new franchise markets in 2004, and only five managed mar-
kets remain at the end of 2004. Our base management fees increased $4 million, and
our incentive management fees were essentially flat with last year, while our franchise
fees, principally associated with our Residence Inn brand, increased $9 million. The
increase in franchise fees is largely due to the growth in the number of rooms and an
increase in REVPAR. Since year-end 2003, we have added 20 hotels (2,303 rooms) and
deflagged one hotel (80 rooms) across our Extended-Stay segment. In addition, gains of
$10 million in 2004 were favorable to the prior year by $4 million. ExecuStay experi-
enced improved results compared to the prior year, resulting from increased occupancy,
primarily in the New York market, coupled with lower operating costs associated with
the shift in business toward franchising. The $2 million increase in general and admin-
istrative costs associated with supporting the segment’s hotel brands was more than off-
set by the $6 million decline in ExecuStay’s general and administrative costs associated
with the shift toward franchising.

REVPAR for Select-Service and Extended-Stay Lodging comparable company-
operated North American hotels increased 9.1 percent to $68.66. Occupancy for these
hotels increased to 72.6 percent from 70.0 percent in 2003, while average daily rates
increased 4.4 percent to $94.52.

2003 COMPARED TO 2002

In 2002, we recorded a $50 million charge in our Extended-Stay Lodging segment to
write down the acquisition goodwill for ExecuStay. Our base and incentive manage-
ment fees decreased $7 million and our franchise fees increased $6 million. In 2003,
we added 31 hotels (3,837 rooms) across our Extended-Stay Lodging segment. Over 
80 percent of the gross room additions were franchised. We deflagged one property
(104 rooms), and we decreased our ExecuStay brand by 1,300 units.

REVPAR for Select-Service and Extended-Stay Lodging comparable company-
operated North American hotels decreased 2.2 percent to $63.64. Occupancy for these
hotels decreased to 70.0 percent, while average daily rates decreased 1.1 percent to $90.98.

Timeshare

Annual Change
($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002 2004/2003 2003/2002

Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,502 $1,279 $1,147 17% 12%

Segment results  . . . . . . . $ 203 $ 149 $ 183 36% –19%

2004 COMPARED TO 2003

Timeshare includes our Marriott Vacation Club International, The Ritz-Carlton Club,
Marriott Grand Residence Club and Horizons by Marriott Vacation Club International
brands. Timeshare revenues of $1,502 million and $1,279 million, in 2004 and 2003,
respectively, include interval sales, base management fees and cost reimbursements.
Including our three joint ventures, contract sales, which represent sales of timeshare
intervals before adjustment for percentage of completion accounting, increased 31 per-
cent, primarily due to strong demand in South Carolina, Florida, Hawaii, California,
St. Thomas and Aruba. The favorable segment results reflect a 9 percent increase in
timeshare interval sales and services, higher margins, primarily resulting from lower
marketing and selling costs, and the mix of units sold, partially offset by $24 million 
of higher administrative expenses. Our note sales gain of $64 million was flat compared
to the prior year. In addition, we adjusted the discount rate used in determining the fair
value of our residual interests due to current trends in interest rates and recorded a 
$7 million charge in 2004. Reported revenue growth trailed contract sales growth
because of a higher proportion of sales in joint venture projects and projects with 
lower average construction completion.

2003 COMPARED TO 2002

Our Timeshare segment results decreased 19 percent to $149 million, while revenues
increased 12 percent. Note sale gains in 2003 were $64 million compared to $60 million
in 2002. Contract sales increased 16 percent and were strong at timeshare resorts in 
the Caribbean, Hawaii, and South Carolina and soft in Lake Tahoe, Orlando and
Williamsburg. The comparison to 2002 reflects the $44 million gain in 2002 on the sale
of our investment in Interval International. Timeshare revenues of $1,279 million and
$1,147 million, in 2003 and 2002, respectively, include interval sales, base management
fees and cost reimbursements.
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Synthetic Fuel
For 2004, the synthetic fuel operation generated revenue of $321 million and income
from continuing operations of $107 million, comprised of: operating losses of $98 mil-
lion; and equity losses of $28 million (which included net earn-out payments made of
$6 million); entirely offset by net earn-out payments received of $28 million; a $21 mil-
lion tax benefit; tax credits which amounted to $144 million; and a minority interest
benefit of $40 million reflecting our partner’s share of the operating losses.

For 2003, the synthetic fuel operation generated revenue of $302 million and
income from continuing operations of $96 million, comprised of: operating losses of
$104 million (which included net earn-out payments made of $14 million); minority
interest expense of $55 million, reflecting our partner’s share of the tax credits, tax ben-
efits, and operating losses; entirely offset by equity income of $10 million; a $34 million
tax benefit; and tax credits which amounted to $211 million.

The $11 million increase in income from continuing operations attributable to the
synthetic fuel operation to $107 million from $96 million is primarily due to slightly
higher production in 2004.

In July 2004, Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) field auditors issued a notice of
proposed adjustment and later a Summary Report to PacifiCorp, the previous owner 
of the synthetic fuel facilities, that included a challenge to the placed-in-service dates 
of three of the four synthetic fuel facilities owned by one of our synthetic fuel joint
ventures. One of the conditions to qualify for tax credits under Section 29 of the
Internal Revenue Code is that the production facility must have been placed-in-service 
before July 1, 1998.

We strongly believe that all the facilities meet the placed-in-service requirement.
Although we are engaged in discussions with the IRS and are confident this issue will
be resolved in our favor and not result in a material charge to us, we cannot assure you
as to the ultimate outcome of this matter. If ultimately resolved against us we could be
prevented from realizing projected future tax credits and cause us to reverse previously
utilized tax credits, requiring payment of substantial additional taxes. Since acquiring
the plants, we have recognized approximately $435 million of tax credits from all four
plants through December 31, 2004. The tax credits recognized through December 31,
2004, associated with the three facilities in question totaled approximately $330 million.

On October 6, 2004, we entered into amendment agreements with our synthetic fuel
partner that result in a shift in the allocation of tax credits between us. On the synthetic
fuel facility that is not being reviewed by the IRS, our partner increased its allocation of
tax credits from approximately 50 percent to 90 percent through March 31, 2005, and
pays a higher price per tax credit to us for that additional share of tax credits. With
respect to the three synthetic fuel facilities under IRS review, our partner reduced its
allocation of tax credits from approximately 50 percent to an average of roughly 5 per-
cent through March 31, 2005. If the IRS’ placed-in-service challenge regarding the three
facilities is not successfully resolved by March 31, 2005, our partner will have the right
to return its ownership interest in those three facilities to us at that time. We will have
the flexibility to continue to operate at current levels, reduce production and/or sell an
interest to another party. If there is a successful resolution by March 31, 2005, our part-
ner’s share of the tax credits from all four facilities will return to approximately 50 per-
cent. In any event, on March 31, 2005, our share of the tax credits from the one facility
not under review will return to approximately 50 percent.

Impact of Future Adoption of Accounting Standards
Statement of Position 04-2, “Accounting for Real Estate Time-sharing Transactions”
In December 2004, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants issued
Statement of Position (“SOP”) 04-2, “Accounting for Real Estate Time-sharing
Transactions,” and the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) amended
Financial Accounting Standards (“FAS”) No. 66, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate,”
and FAS No. 67, “Accounting for Costs and Initial Rental Operations of Real Estate
Projects,” to exclude accounting for real estate time-sharing transactions from these
statements. The SOP will be effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005.

Under the SOP, the majority of the costs incurred to sell timeshares will be charged
to expense when incurred. In regard to notes receivable issued in conjunction with a
sale, an estimate of uncollectibility that is expected to occur must be recorded as a
reduction of revenue at the time that profit is recognized on a timeshare sale. Rental and
other operations during holding periods must be accounted for as incidental operations,
which require that any excess costs be recorded as a reduction of inventory costs.

We estimate that the initial adoption of the SOP, which will be reported as a cumu-
lative effect of a change in accounting principle in our fiscal year 2006 financial state-
ments, will result in a non-cash one-time pre-tax charge of approximately $150 million,
consisting primarily of the write-off of deferred selling costs and establishing the
required reserve on notes. We estimate that the ongoing impact of adoption will 
not be significant.

FAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment”
In December 2004, the FASB issued FAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based
Payment” (“FAS No. 123R”), which is a revision of FAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation.” FAS No. 123R supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees,” and amends FAS No. 95, “Statement of Cash Flows.” We
will adopt FAS No. 123R at the beginning of our 2005 third quarter.

FAS No. 123R requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of
employee stock options, to be recorded as an expense based on their fair values. The
grant-date fair value of employee share options and similar instruments will be esti-
mated using an option-pricing model adjusted for any unique characteristics of a par-
ticular instrument. If an equity award is modified after the grant date, incremental
compensation cost will be recognized in an amount equal to the excess of the fair
value of the modified award over the fair value of the original award immediately
before the modification.

We estimate that adoption of FAS No. 123R, using the modified prospective
method, will result in incremental pre-tax expense in fiscal year 2005 of approximately
$20 million, based on our current share-based payment compensation plans and a
mid-year adoption.
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D I S C O N T I N U E D  O P E R AT I O N S

Senior Living Services
On December 30, 2002, we entered into a definitive agreement to sell our senior living
management business to Sunrise Senior Living, Inc. (“Sunrise”) and to sell nine senior
living communities to CNL Retirement Properties, Inc. (“CNL”). We recorded after-tax
charges of $131 million in 2002 associated with our agreement to sell our senior living
management business. We completed the sales to Sunrise and CNL and a related sale of
a parcel of land to Sunrise in March 2003 for $266 million. We recorded after-tax gains
of $19 million in 2003.

Distribution Services
In the third quarter of 2002, we completed a previously announced strategic review of
our Distribution Services business and decided to exit that business. We completed that
exit during the fourth quarter of 2002 through a combination of transferring certain
facilities, closing other facilities and other suitable arrangements. We recorded after-tax
charges of $40 million in 2002 in connection with the decision to exit this business.

L I Q U I D I T Y  A N D  C A P I TA L  R E S O U RC E S

Cash Requirements and Our Credit Facilities
We are party to two multicurrency revolving credit agreements that provide for
borrowings of up to $2 billion, expiring in 2006 ($1.5 billion expiring in July and 
$500 million expiring in August), which support our commercial paper program and
letters of credit. At December 31, 2004, we had no loans outstanding under these facili-
ties. Fluctuations in the availability of the commercial paper market do not affect our
liquidity because of the flexibility provided by our credit facilities. Borrowings under
these facilities bear interest at LIBOR plus a spread based on our public debt rating. At
December 31, 2004, our cash balances combined with our available borrowing capacity
under the credit facilities amounted to approximately $2.7 billion. We consider these
resources, together with cash we expect to generate from operations, adequate to meet
our short-term and long-term liquidity requirements, finance our long-term growth
plans, meet debt service and fulfill other cash requirements, including the repayment 
of our Series D senior notes totaling $275 million and our Series B senior notes totaling
$200 million, both of which mature in 2005.

We monitor the status of the capital markets and regularly evaluate the effect that
changes in capital market conditions may have on our ability to execute our announced
growth plans. We expect that part of our financing and liquidity needs will continue to
be met through commercial paper borrowings and access to long-term committed
credit facilities. If conditions in the lodging industry deteriorate, or if disruptions in 
the commercial paper market take place as they did in the immediate aftermath of
September 11, 2001, we may be unable to place some or all of our commercial paper 
on a temporary or extended basis, and may have to rely more on borrowings under the
credit facilities, which may carry a higher cost than commercial paper.

Cash from Operations
Cash from operations, depreciation expense and amortization expense for the last three
fiscal years are as follows:

($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002

Cash from operations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $891 $403 $516

Depreciation expense  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 133 132 145

Amortization expense  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33 28 42

While our timeshare business generates strong operating cash flow, the timing of
both cash outlays for the acquisition and development of new resorts and cash received
from purchaser financing affects annual amounts. We include timeshare interval sales
we finance in cash from operations when we collect cash payments or the notes are sold
for cash. The following table shows the net operating activity from our timeshare busi-
ness (which excludes the portion of net income from our timeshare business, as that
number is a component of income from continuing operations):

($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002

Timeshare development, less the cost of sales  . . . . . . . . . $ 93 $ (94) $(102)

New timeshare mortgages, net of collections  . . . . . . . . . (459) (247) (218)

Loan repurchases  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (18) (19) (16)

Note sale gains  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (64) (64) (60)

Financially reportable sales less than (in excess of) 
closed sales  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 129 (4) (13)

Note sale proceeds  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 312 231 341

Collection on retained interests in notes sold and 
servicing fees  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 94 50 31

Other cash inflows (outflows) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 26 36 (26)

Net cash inflows (outflows) from timeshare activity  . . . $ 113 $(111) $ (63)

Our ability to sell timeshare notes depends on the continued ability of the capital
markets to provide financing to the special purpose entities that buy the notes. We
might have increased difficulty or be unable to consummate such sales if the underly-
ing quality of the notes receivable we originate were to deteriorate, although we do not
expect such a deterioration.

Our ratio of current assets to current liabilities was 0.8 to 1 at both December 31,
2004, and January 2, 2004. Each of our businesses minimizes working capital through
cash management, strict credit-granting policies, aggressive collection efforts and high
inventory turnover. We also have significant borrowing capacity under our revolving
credit facilities should we need additional working capital.
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Investing Activities Cash Flows
Capital Expenditures and Other Investments. Capital expenditures of $181 million in
2004, $210 million in 2003 and $292 million in 2002 primarily included expenditures
related to the development and construction of new hotels and acquisitions of hotel
properties, as well as improvement to existing properties and systems initiatives. Over
time, we have sold lodging properties under development, subject to long-term man-
agement agreements. The ability of third-party purchasers to raise the necessary debt
and equity capital depends in part on the perceived risks inherent in the lodging indus-
try and other constraints inherent in the capital markets as a whole. Although we
expect to continue to consummate such real estate sales, if we were unable to do so, our
liquidity could decrease and we could have increased exposure to the operating risks of
owning real estate. We monitor the status of the capital markets and regularly evaluate
the effect that changes in capital market conditions may have on our ability to execute
our announced growth plans. We also expect to continue to make other investments in
connection with adding units to our lodging business. These investments include loans
and minority equity investments.

Fluctuations in the values of hotel real estate generally have little impact on the
overall results of our Lodging segments because (1) we own less than 1 percent of the
total number of hotels that we operate or franchise; (2) management and franchise fees
are generally based upon hotel revenues and profits versus current hotel property val-
ues; and (3) our management agreements generally do not terminate upon hotel sale.

Dispositions. Property and asset sales generated cash proceeds of $402 million in
2004, $494 million in 2003 and $729 million in 2002. In 2004, we closed on the sales 
of two hotels, and we continue to operate both of the hotels under long-term manage-
ment agreements. We also disposed of 30 land parcels, our Ramada International
Hotels & Resorts franchised brand, our interest in the Two Flags joint venture, two
other minority interests in joint ventures and other miscellaneous assets.

Loan Activity. We have made loans to owners of hotels that we operate or franchise,
typically to facilitate the development of a new hotel. Over time we expect these owners
to repay the loans in accordance with the loan agreements, or earlier as the hotels
mature and capital markets permit. We have also made loans to the synthetic fuel joint
venture partner and to the purchaser of our senior living business. Loan collections, net
of advances during 2004, amounted to $147 million. Loans outstanding, excluding
timeshare notes, totaled $942 million at December 31, 2004, $996 million at January 2,
2004, and $944 million at January 3, 2003. Unfunded commitments aggregating 
$42 million were outstanding at December 31, 2004, of which we expect to fund 
$12 million in 2005 and $26 million in total.

Other Investing Activities
A summary of our other investing outflows is shown in the table below.

($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002

Equity investments  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(75) $(22) $(26)

Investment in corporate-owned life insurance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (8) (12) (11)

Other net cash inflows (outflows)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 22 (33)

Cash proceeds on sale of investment in Interval International  . . . — — 63

Other investing outflows . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(81) $(12) $ (7)

Cash from Financing Activities
Debt. Debt decreased $130 million in 2004, from $1,455 million to $1,325 million, due
to the repurchase of all of our remaining zero-coupon convertible senior Liquid Yield
Option Notes due 2021, also known as LYONs (“the LYONs”) totaling $62 million, the
maturity of $46 million of senior notes and other debt reductions of $22 million. Debt
decreased by $319 million in 2003, due to the $200 million repayment, at maturity, of
Series A debt in November 2003 and the net pay down of $161 million of commercial
paper and other debt.

Our financial objectives include diversifying our financing sources, optimizing the
mix and maturity of our long-term debt and reducing our working capital. At year-end
2004, our long-term debt had an average interest rate of 7.5 percent and an average
maturity of approximately 2.5 years. The ratio of fixed-rate long-term debt to total
long-term debt was slightly lower than one as of December 31, 2004. At December 31,
2004, we had long-term public debt ratings of BBB+ from Standard and Poor’s and
Baa2 from Moody’s.

We have $500 million available for future offerings under “universal shelf” registra-
tion statements we have filed with the SEC.

Share Repurchases. We purchased 14.0 million of our shares in 2004 at an average
price of $46.65 per share, 10.5 million of our shares in 2003 at an average price of
$36.07 per share, and 7.8 million of our shares in 2002 at an average price of $32.52 per
share. As of December 31, 2004, 18.6 million shares remained available for repurchase
under authorizations from our Board of Directors.

The graph below shows our diluted weighted average shares count for each of the
last five fiscal years:

Dividends. In May 2004, our Board of Directors increased the quarterly cash
dividend by 13 percent to $0.085 per share.
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Pending Transaction
Courtyard Joint Venture
In December 2004, we and Host Marriott announced the signing of a purchase and sale
agreement by which an institutional investor would obtain a 75 percent interest in the
Courtyard Joint Venture. We expect the transaction, which is subject to certain closing
conditions, to close in early 2005, although we cannot assure you that the sale will be
completed. Currently, we and Host Marriott own equal shares in the 120-property joint
venture, and with the addition of the new equity, our percentage interest in the joint
venture will decline from 50 percent to 21 percent. As a result of the transaction, the
pace of the Courtyard hotel reinventions, a program that renovates and upgrades
Courtyard hotels, will be accelerated.

Upon closing of the transaction:
3 We expect that our existing mezzanine loan to the joint venture (including

accrued interest) totaling approximately $249 million at December 31, 2004,
will be repaid;

3 We expect to make available to the joint venture a seven-year subordinated loan
of approximately $144 million to be funded as reinventions are completed in
2005 and 2006;

3 We expect to enter into a new long-term management agreement with the joint
venture. As the termination of the existing management agreement is probable,
we have written off our deferred contract costs related to the existing contract in
the 2004 fourth quarter, resulting in a charge of $13 million; and

3 Upon closing of the transaction, we expect to record a gain associated with the
repayment of the mezzanine loan, which will be substantially offset by our
portion of the joint venture’s costs of prepaying an existing senior loan.

On an ongoing basis, we expect our interest income will decline as a result of the
repayment of the mezzanine loan, and we expect lower book losses from the joint
venture due to the reduction of our equity interest and improved performance at the
hotels. On a long-term basis, we expect that the Courtyard reinventions will promote
continued growth and maintain and enhance customer preference.

Contractual Obligations and Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
The following table summarizes our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2004:

Payments Due by Period
Less 

Than 1–3 3–5 After
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years

($ in millions)

Debt 1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,723 $575 $147 $702 $ 299

Capital lease obligations 1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 1 2 2 11

Operating leases

Recourse  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,035 93 195 205 542

Non-recourse  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 544 28 38 31 447

Other long-term liabilities  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 56 — 6 6 44

Total contractual cash obligations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,374 $697 $388 $946 $1,343

1 Includes principal as well as interest payments.

The following table summarizes our commitments as of December 31, 2004:

Amount of Commitment 
Expiration Per Period

Total Less
Amounts Than 1–3 3–5 After

Other Commercial Commitments Committed 1 Year Years Years 5 Years

($ in millions)

Total guarantees where Marriott 
International is the primary obligor . . . . . . $ 601 $ 64 $203 $121 $ 213

Total guarantees where Marriott 
International is secondarily liable . . . . . . . . 1,909 108 209 211 1,381

Total other commercial commitments . . . . . . . $2,510 $172 $412 $332 $1,594

Our guarantees listed above include $91 million for guarantees that will not be in
effect until the underlying hotels are open and we begin to manage the properties. Our
guarantee fundings to lenders and hotel owners are generally recoverable as loans and
are generally repayable to us out of future hotel cash flows and/or proceeds from the
sale of hotels.

The guarantees above include $349 million related to Senior Living Services lease
obligations and lifecare bonds for which we are secondarily liable. Sunrise is the pri-
mary obligor of the leases and a portion of the lifecare bonds, and CNL is the primary
obligor of the remainder of the lifecare bonds. Prior to the sale of the Senior Living
Services business at the end of the first quarter of 2003, these pre-existing guarantees
were guarantees by the Company of obligations of consolidated Senior Living Services
subsidiaries. Sunrise and CNL have indemnified us for any guarantee fundings we may
be called on to make in connection with these lease obligations and lifecare bonds. We
do not expect to fund under these guarantees.

The guarantees above also include lease obligations for which we became secondarily
liable when we acquired the Renaissance Hotel Group N.V. in 1997, consisting of
annual rent payments of approximately $63 million and total remaining rent payments
through the initial term plus available extensions of approximately $1.56 billion. We are
also secondarily obligated for real estate taxes and other charges associated with the
leases. Third parties have severally indemnified us for all payments we may be required
to make in connection with these obligations. Since we assumed these guarantees, we
have not funded any amounts, and we do not expect to fund any amounts under these
guarantees in the future.

In addition to the guarantees noted above, as of December 31, 2004, our total
unfunded loan commitments amounted to $42 million. We expect to fund $12 million
of those commitments within one year and $14 million in the following year. We do 
not expect to fund the remaining $16 million of commitments, which expire as follows:
$14 million within one year and $2 million after five years.

At December 31, 2004, we also have commitments to invest $37 million of equity for
a minority interest in two partnerships, which plan to purchase both full-service and
select-service hotels in the United States.
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At December 31, 2004, we also had $96 million of letters of credit outstanding on
our behalf, the majority of which related to our self-insurance programs. Surety bonds
issued on our behalf as of December 31, 2004, totaled $486 million, the majority of
which were requested by federal, state or local governments related to our timeshare
and lodging operations and self-insurance programs.

As part of the normal course of business, we enter into purchase commitments to
manage the daily operating needs of our hotels. Since we are reimbursed by the hotel
owners, these obligations have minimal impact on our net income and cash flow.

R E L AT E D  PA RT Y  T R A N S AC T I O N S
We have equity method investments in entities that own properties for which we pro-
vide management and/or franchise services and receive a fee. In addition, in some cases
we provide loans, preferred equity or guarantees to these entities. The following tables
present financial data resulting from transactions with these related parties:

Income Statement Data

($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002

Base management fees  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 72 $ 56 $ 48

Incentive management fees  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 4 4

Cost reimbursements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 802 699 557

Owned, leased, corporate housing and other revenue  . . . . . 29 28 26

Total revenue  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 911 $ 787 $ 635

General, administrative and other  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (33) $ (11) $ (11)

Reimbursed costs  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (802) (699) (557)

Gains and other income  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19 21 44

Interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 74 77 66

Reversal of (provision for) loan losses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 (2) (5)

Equity in earnings (losses)—synthetic fuel  . . . . . . . . . . . . . (28) 10 —

Equity in earnings (losses)—other  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (14) (17) (6)

Balance Sheet Data

($ in millions) 2004 2003

Current assets—accounts and notes receivable  . . . . . . . . . . $ 72 $ 118

Contract acquisition costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 42

Equity method investments  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 249 468

Loans to equity method investees  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 526 558

Other long-term receivables  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 —

Other long-term assets  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 38 30

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3) (2)

Other payables and accruals  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4) (1)

Other long-term liabilities  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (11) (10)

C R I T I C A L  AC C O U N T I N G  E S T I M AT E S
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assump-
tions that affect reported amounts and related disclosures. Management considers an
accounting estimate to be critical if:

3 it requires assumptions to be made that were uncertain at the time the estimate
was made; and

3 changes in the estimate or different estimates that could have been selected 
could have a material effect on our consolidated results of operations or 
financial condition.

Management has discussed the development and selection of its critical accounting
estimates with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, and the Audit
Committee has reviewed the disclosure presented below relating to them.

Marriott Rewards
Marriott Rewards is our frequent guest loyalty program. Marriott Rewards members
earn points based on their monetary spending at our lodging operations, purchases of
timeshare intervals, and, to a lesser degree, through participation in affiliated partners’
programs, such as those offered by airlines and credit card companies.

We defer revenue received from managed, franchised and Marriott-owned/leased
hotels and program partners equal to the fair value of our future redemption obliga-
tion. We determine the fair value of the future redemption obligation based on statisti-
cal formulas which project timing of future point redemption based on historical levels,
including an estimate of the “breakage” for points that will never be redeemed, and an
estimate of the points that will eventually be redeemed. These judgmental factors deter-
mine the required liability for outstanding points.

Our management and franchise agreements require that we be reimbursed currently
for the costs of operating the program, including marketing, promotion, communica-
tion with, and performing member services for the Marriott Rewards members. Due to
the requirement that hotels reimburse us for program operating costs as incurred, we
receive and recognize the balance of the revenue from hotels in connection with the
Marriott Rewards program at the time such costs are incurred and expensed. We recog-
nize the component of revenue from program partners that corresponds to program
maintenance services over the expected life of the points awarded.

Upon the redemption of points, we recognize as revenue the amounts previously
deferred, and recognize the corresponding expense relating to the costs of the 
awards redeemed.

Valuation of Goodwill
We evaluate the fair value of goodwill to assess potential impairments on an annual
basis, or during the year if an event or other circumstance indicates that we may not be
able to recover the carrying amount of the asset. We evaluate the fair value of goodwill
at the reporting unit level and make that determination based upon future cash flow
projections which assume certain growth projections which may or may not occur. We
record an impairment loss for goodwill when the carrying value of the intangible asset
is less than its estimated fair value.
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Loan Loss Reserves
We measure loan impairment based on the present value of expected future cash flows
discounted at the loan’s original effective interest rate or the estimated fair value of the
collateral. For impaired loans, we establish a specific impairment reserve for the differ-
ence between the recorded investment in the loan and the present value of the expected
future cash flows, which assumes certain growth projections which may or may not
occur, or the estimated fair value of the collateral. We apply our loan impairment 
policy individually to all loans in the portfolio and do not aggregate loans for the pur-
pose of applying such policy. Where we determine that a loan is impaired, we recognize
interest income on a cash basis. At December 31, 2004, our recorded investment in
impaired loans was $181 million. We have a $92 million allowance for credit losses,
leaving $89 million of our investment in impaired loans for which there is no related
allowance for credit losses.

Legal Contingencies
We are subject to various legal proceedings and claims, the outcomes of which are
subject to significant uncertainty. We record an accrual for loss contingencies when a
loss is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. We review
these accruals each reporting period and make revisions based on changes in facts 
and circumstances.

Income Taxes
We record the current year amounts payable or refundable, as well as the consequences
of events that give rise to deferred tax assets and liabilities based on differences in how
those events are treated for tax purposes. We base our estimate of deferred tax assets
and liabilities on current tax laws and rates and, in certain cases, business plans and
other expectations about future outcomes.

Changes in existing laws and rates, and their related interpretations, and future
business results may affect the amount of deferred tax liabilities or the valuation of
deferred tax assets over time. Our accounting for deferred tax consequences represents
management’s best estimate of future events that can be appropriately reflected in the
accounting estimates.

OT H E R  M AT T E R S

Audit Services
Our independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP (“E&Y”),
recently notified the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board and the Audit Committee of our Board of
Directors that certain non-audit services E&Y performed in China and Japan for a large
number of public companies, including Marriott, have raised questions regarding
E&Y’s independence in its performance of audit services.

With respect to Marriott, from 2001 through 2004, E&Y performed tax calculation
and preparation services for Marriott employees located in China and Japan, and affili-
ates of E&Y made payment of the relevant taxes on behalf of Marriott. The payment of
those taxes involved handling of Company-related funds, which is not permitted under
SEC auditor independence rules. These actions by affiliates of E&Y have been discon-
tinued, and both the amount of the taxes and the fees paid to E&Y in connection with
these services are de minimis.

The Audit Committee and E&Y discussed E&Y’s independence with respect to the
Company in light of the foregoing facts. E&Y informed the Audit Committee that it
does not believe that the holding and paying of those funds impaired E&Y’s independ-
ence with respect to the Company. The Company, based on its own review, also is not
aware of any additional non-audit services that may compromise E&Y’s independence
in performing audit services for the Company.

Inflation
Inflation has been moderate in recent years and has not had a significant impact 
on our businesses.

Q UA N T I TAT I V E  A N D  Q UA L I TAT I V E  D I S C LO S U R E S  
A B O U T  M A R K E T  R I S K
We are exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates and foreign exchange
rates. We manage our exposure to these risks by monitoring available financing alterna-
tives, through development and application of credit granting policies and by entering
into derivative arrangements. We do not foresee any significant changes in either our
exposure to fluctuations in interest rates or foreign exchange rates or in how such
exposure is managed in the future.

We are exposed to interest rate risk on our floating-rate timeshare and notes receiv-
able, our residual interests retained in connection with the sale of timeshare intervals,
and the fair value of our fixed-rate notes receivable.

Changes in interest rates also impact our floating-rate long-term debt and the fair
value of our fixed-rate long-term debt.

We use derivative instruments as part of our overall strategy to manage our expo-
sure to market risks associated with fluctuations in interest rates and foreign currency
exchange rates. As a matter of policy, we do not use derivatives for trading or specula-
tive purposes.

At December 31, 2004, we were party to the following derivative instruments:
3 An interest rate swap agreement under which we receive a floating rate of interest

and pay a fixed rate of interest. The swap modifies our interest rate exposure by
effectively converting a note receivable with a fixed rate to a floating rate. The
aggregate notional amount of the swap is $92 million and it matures in 2010.

3 Six outstanding interest rate swap agreements to manage interest rate risk associ-
ated with the residual interests we retain in conjunction with our timeshare note
sales. We are required by purchasers and/or rating agencies to utilize interest rate
swaps to protect the excess spread within our sold note pools. The aggregate
notional amount of the swaps is $535 million, and they expire through 2022.

3 Forward foreign exchange and option contracts to hedge the potential volatility
of earnings and cash flows associated with variations in foreign exchange rates
during fiscal year 2005. The aggregate dollar equivalent of the notional amounts
of the contracts is approximately $36 million, and they expire throughout 2005.

3 Forward foreign exchange contracts to manage the foreign currency exposure
related to certain monetary assets denominated in pounds sterling. The aggregate
dollar equivalent of the notional amounts of the forward contracts is $36 million
at December 31, 2004.
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The following table sets forth the scheduled maturities and the total fair value of our derivatives and other financial instruments as of December 31, 2004:

Maturities by Period
Total Carrying Total Fair

($ in millions) 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereafter Amount Value

Assets—Maturities represent principal receipts,
fair values represent assets.

Timeshare notes receivable  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 26 $ 31 $ 28 $ 26 $ 26 $ 178 $ 315 $ 315

Average interest rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12.79%

Fixed-rate notes receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 12 $230 $ 20 $ 26 $ 1 $ 300 $ 589 $ 641

Average interest rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12.21%

Floating-rate notes receivable  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 30 $ 53 $ 86 $ 24 $ 4 $ 156 $ 353 $ 353

Average interest rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.15%

Residual interests  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 63 $ 47 $ 28 $ 20 $ 13 $ 19 $ 190 $ 190

Average interest rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.77%

Liabilities—Maturities represent principal payments,
fair values represent liabilities.

Fixed-rate debt  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(488) $(14) $(12) $(306) $(311) $(192) $(1,323) $(1,348)

Average interest rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.44%

Floating-rate debt  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (1) $ (1) $ — $ — $ — $ — $ (2) $ (2)

Average interest rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.08%

Derivatives—Maturities represent notional amounts,
fair values represent assets (liabilities).

Interest Rate Swaps:

Fixed to variable  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 468 $ (2) $ (2)

Average pay rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4.36%

Average receive rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.64%

Variable to fixed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 159 $ 2 $ 2

Average pay rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.96%

Average receive rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5.23%

Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts:

Fixed (Euro) to Fixed ($U.S.) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 21 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $      — $      —

Average exchange rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.30

Fixed (GPB) to Fixed ($U.S.)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 51 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $      — $      —

Average exchange rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.88



Forward-Looking Statements
We make forward-looking statements in this report based on the beliefs and assumptions of our management and on information
currently available to us. Forward-looking statements include information about our possible or assumed future results of opera-
tions in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” under the headings “Business
and Overview,” “Liquidity and Capital Resources” and other statements throughout this report preceded by, followed by or that
include the words “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “estimates,” or similar expressions.

Forward-looking statements involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions, including risks described below and other risks 
that we describe from time to time in our periodic filings with the SEC, and our actual results may differ materially from those
expressed in our forward-looking statements. We therefore caution you not to rely unduly on any forward-looking statement. The
forward-looking statements in this report speak only as of the date of the report, and we undertake no obligation to update or
revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future developments or otherwise.

Risks and Uncertainties
We are subject to various risks that could have a negative effect on the Company and its financial condition. You should under-
stand that these risks could cause results to differ materially from those expressed in forward-looking statements contained in this
report and in other Company communications. Because there is no way to determine in advance whether, or to what extent, any
present uncertainty will ultimately impact our business, you should give equal weight to each of the following.

The lodging industry is highly competitive, which may impact our ability to compete successfully with other hotel and time-
share properties for customers. We generally operate in markets that contain numerous competitors. Each of our hotel and time-
share brands competes with major hotel chains in national and international venues and with independent companies in regional
markets. Our ability to remain competitive and attract and retain business and leisure travelers depends on our success in distin-
guishing the quality, value and efficiency of our lodging products and services from those offered by others. If we are unable to
compete successfully in these areas, this could limit our operating margins, diminish our market share and reduce our earnings.

We are subject to the range of operating risks common to the hotel, timeshare and corporate apartment industries. The
profitability of the hotels, vacation timeshare resorts and corporate apartments that we operate or franchise may be adversely
affected by a number of factors, including:

(1) the availability of and demand for hotel rooms, timeshares and apartments;
(2) international, national and regional economic conditions;
(3) the desirability of particular locations and changes in travel patterns;
(4) taxes and government regulations that influence or determine wages, prices, interest rates, construction procedures and costs;
(5) the availability of capital to allow us and potential hotel owners and joint venture partners to fund investments;
(6) regional and national development of competing properties; and
(7) increases in wages and other labor costs, energy, healthcare, insurance, transportation and fuel, and other expenses central

to the conduct of our business.
Any one or more of these factors could limit or reduce the demand, and therefore the prices we are able to obtain, for hotel

rooms, timeshare units and corporate apartments. In addition, reduced demand for hotels could also give rise to losses under
loans, guarantees and minority equity investments that we have made in connection with hotels that we manage.

The uncertain pace of the lodging industry’s recovery will continue to impact our financial results and growth. Both the
Company and the lodging industry were hurt by several events occurring over the last few years, including the global economic
downturn, the terrorist attacks on New York and Washington, Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARS) and military action in
Iraq. Business and leisure travel decreased and remained depressed as some potential travelers reduced or avoided discretionary
travel in light of increased delays and safety concerns and economic declines stemming from an erosion in consumer confidence.
Weaker hotel performance reduced management and franchise fees and gave rise to fundings or losses under loans, guarantees 
and minority investments that we have made in connection with some hotels that we manage, which, in turn, has had a material
adverse impact on our financial performance. Although both the lodging and travel industries are recovering, the pace, duration
and full extent of that recovery remain unclear. Accordingly, our financial results and growth could be harmed if that recovery
stalls or is reversed.

Our lodging operations are subject to international, national and regional conditions. Because we conduct our business 
on a national and international platform, our activities are susceptible to changes in the performance of regional and global
economies. In recent years, our business has been hurt by decreases in travel resulting from recent economic conditions, the mili-
tary action in Iraq, and the heightened travel security measures that have resulted from the threat of further terrorism. Our future
economic performance is similarly subject to the uncertain magnitude and duration of the economic recovery in the United States,
the prospects of improving economic performance in other regions, the unknown pace of any business travel recovery that results,
and the occurrence of any future incidents in the countries in which we operate.

Our growth strategy depends upon third-party owners/operators, and future arrangements with these third parties may be
less favorable. Our present growth strategy for development of additional lodging facilities entails entering into and maintaining
various arrangements with property owners. The terms of our management agreements, franchise agreements and leases for each
of our lodging facilities are influenced by contract terms offered by our competitors, among other things. We cannot assure you
that any of our current arrangements will continue. Moreover, we may not be able to enter into future collaborations, or to renew
or enter into agreements in the future, on terms that are as favorable to us as those under existing collaborations and agreements.

We may have disputes with the owners of the hotels that we manage or franchise. Consistent with our focus on management
and franchising, we own very few of our lodging properties. The nature of our responsibilities under our management agreements
to manage each hotel and enforce the standards required for our brands under both management and franchise agreements may,
in some instances, be subject to interpretation and may give rise to disagreements. We seek to resolve any disagreements in order
to develop and maintain positive relations with current and potential hotel owners and joint venture partners, but have not always
been able to do so. Failure to resolve such disagreements has in the past resulted in litigation, and could do so in the future.

Our ability to grow our management and franchise systems is subject to the range of risks associated with real estate investments.
Our ability to sustain continued growth through management or franchise agreements for new hotels and the conversion of existing
facilities to managed or franchised Marriott brands is affected, and may potentially be limited, by a variety of factors influencing real
estate development generally. These include site availability, financing, planning, zoning and other local approvals, and other limitations
that may be imposed by market and submarket factors, such as projected room occupancy, growth in demand opposite projected sup-
ply, territorial restrictions in our management and franchise agreements, costs of construction and anticipated room rate structure.

We depend on capital to buy and maintain hotels, and we may be unable to access capital when necessary. In order to fund
new hotel investments, as well as refurbish and improve existing hotels, both the Company and current and potential hotel owners
must periodically spend money. The availability of funds for new investments and maintenance of existing hotels depends in large
measure on capital markets and liquidity factors over which we can exert little control. Our ability to recover loan and guarantee
advances from hotel operations or from owners through the proceeds of hotel sales, refinancing of debt or otherwise may also
affect our ability to recycle and raise new capital.

In the event of damage to or other potential losses involving properties that we own, manage or franchise, potential losses
may not be covered by insurance. We have comprehensive property and liability insurance policies with coverage features and
insured limits that we believe are customary. Market forces beyond our control may nonetheless limit both the scope of property
and liability insurance coverage that we can obtain and our ability to obtain coverage at reasonable rates. There are certain types 
of losses, generally of a catastrophic nature, such as earthquakes and floods or terrorist acts, that may be uninsurable or may be
too expensive to justify insuring against. As a result, we may not be successful in obtaining insurance without increases in cost or
decreases in coverage levels. In addition, we may carry insurance coverage that, in the event of a substantial loss, would not be suf-
ficient to pay the full current market value or current replacement cost of our lost investment or that of hotel owners, or in some
cases could also result in certain losses being totally uninsured. As a result, we could lose all, or a portion of, the capital we have
invested in a property, as well as the anticipated future revenue from the property, and we could remain obligated for guarantees,
debt or other financial obligations related to the property.

Risks relating to acts of God, terrorist activity and war could reduce the demand for lodging, which may adversely affect 
our revenues. Acts of God, such as natural disasters and the spread of contagious diseases, in locations where we own, manage or
franchise significant properties and areas of the world from which we draw a large number of customers can cause a decline in 
the level of business and leisure travel and reduce the demand for lodging. Wars (including the potential for war), terrorist activity
(including threats of terrorist activity), political unrest and other forms of civil strife and geopolitical uncertainty can have a simi-
lar effect. Any one or more of these events may reduce the overall demand for hotel rooms, timeshare units and corporate apart-
ments, or limit the prices that we are able to obtain for them, both of which could adversely affect our revenues.

Increasing use of internet reservation services may adversely impact our revenues. Some of our hotel rooms are booked
through internet travel intermediaries serving both the leisure, and increasingly, the corporate travel sectors. While Marriott’s Look
No Further Best Rate Guarantee has greatly reduced the ability of these internet travel intermediaries to undercut the published
rates of Marriott hotels, these internet travel intermediaries continue their attempts to commoditize hotel rooms, by aggressively
marketing to price-sensitive travelers and corporate accounts and increasing the importance of general indicators of quality (such
as “three-star downtown hotel”) at the expense of brand identification. These agencies hope that consumers will eventually
develop brand loyalties to their travel services rather than to our lodging brands. Although we expect to continue to maintain and
even increase the strength of our brands in the online marketplace, if the amount of sales made through internet intermediaries
increases significantly, our business and profitability may be harmed.

Changes in privacy law could adversely affect our ability to market our products effectively. Our timeshare business, and to
a lesser extent our lodging segments, rely on a variety of direct marketing techniques, including telemarketing and mass mailings.
Recent initiatives, such as the National Do Not Call Registry and various state laws regarding marketing and solicitation, including
anti-spam legislation, have created some concern about the continuing effectiveness of telemarketing and mass mailing techniques
and could force further changes in our marketing strategy. If this occurs, we may not be able to develop adequate alternative
marketing strategies, which could impact the amount and timing of our sales of timeshare units and other products. We also
obtain lists of potential customers from travel service providers with whom we have substantial relationships and market to some
individuals on these lists directly. If the acquisition of these lists were outlawed or otherwise restricted, our ability to develop new
customers and introduce them to our products could be impaired.

Activities relating to our synthetic fuel operations could increase our tax liabilities. The Company earns revenues and
generates tax credits from its synthetic fuel operations, which create a fuel that qualifies for tax credits pursuant to Section 29 
of the Internal Revenue Code. The performance of the synthetic fuel operations depends in part on our ability to utilize the tax
credits, which in turn is dependent on our financial performance. If our businesses do not generate sufficient profits, we might
suffer losses associated with generating tax credits that we were unable to utilize. In addition, the IRS field audit team’s challenge to
whether three of our synthetic fuel facilities satisfy statutory placed-in-service requirements could, if ultimately resolved against us,
prevent us from realizing projected future tax credits and cause us to reverse previously utilized credits, requiring payment of sub-
stantial additional taxes. The ability of our synthetic fuel operations to generate tax credits could also be adversely impacted by the
productivity of these operations, which may be diminished by problems related to supply, production and demand at any of the
synthetic fuel facilities, the power plants that buy synthetic fuel from the joint venture or the coal mines where the joint venture
buys coal, and by the reduction or elimination of projected future tax credits for synthetic fuel if average crude oil prices in 2005
and beyond exceed certain statutory thresholds, which could affect our ongoing production decisions.

Obligations associated with our exit from the Senior Living Services business may be larger than expected. Our agreement
to sell the Senior Living Services business provides for indemnification of Sunrise Senior Living, Inc. based on pre-closing events
and liabilities resulting from the consummation of the transaction. The amount of the indemnification obligations depends, in
large part, on actions of third parties that are outside of our control. As a result, it is difficult to predict the ultimate impact of the
indemnities, and the amount of these adjustments and indemnities could be larger than expected.
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Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 2004, January 2, 2004, and January 3, 2003 2004 2003 2002

($ in millions, except per share amounts)

REVENUES
Base management fees1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 435 $ 388 $ 379
Franchise fees  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 296 245 232
Incentive management fees1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 142 109 162
Owned, leased, corporate housing and other revenue1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 730 633 651
Timeshare interval sales and services  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,247 1,145 1,059
Cost reimbursements1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,928 6,192 5,739
Synthetic fuel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 321 302 193

10,099 9,014 8,415

OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES
Owned, leased and corporate housing—direct  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 629 505 580
Timeshare—direct  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,039 1,011 938
Reimbursed costs1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,928 6,192 5,739
General, administrative and other1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 607 523 510
Synthetic fuel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 419 406 327

9,622 8,637 8,094

OPERATING INCOME  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 477 377 321
Gains and other income1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 164 106 132
Interest expense  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (99) (110) (86)
Interest income1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 146 129 122
Benefit from (provision for) loan losses1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 (7) (12)
Equity in (losses) earnings

Synthetic fuel1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (28) 10 —
Other1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (14) (17) (6)

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE  INCOME TAXES AND MINORITY INTEREST  . . . . . . . . 654 488 471
(Provision) benefit for income taxes  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (100) 43 (32)

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 554 531 439
Minority interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 40 (55) —

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 594 476 439
Discontinued operations

Income (loss) from Senior Living Services, net of tax  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 26 (108)
Income (loss) from Distribution Services, net of tax  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 — (54)

NET INCOME  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 596 $ 502 $ 277

EARNINGS PER SHARE —Basic
Earnings from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.62 $ 2.05 $ 1.83
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .01 .11 (.68)

Earnings per share  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.63 $ 2.16 $ 1.15

EARNINGS PER SHARE —Diluted
Earnings from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.47 $ 1.94 $ 1.74
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .01 .11 (.64)

Earnings per share  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.48 $ 2.05 $ 1.10

DIVIDENDS DECLARED PER SHARE  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.330 $0.295 $0.275

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1 See Footnote 20, “Related Party Transactions,” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for disclosure of related party amounts.
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December 31, 2004, and January 2, 2004 December 31, 2004 January 2, 2004

($ in millions)

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and equivalents  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 770 $ 229
Accounts and notes receivable1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 797 728
Current deferred taxes, net  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 162 215
Other  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 217 175

1,946 1,347

Property and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,389 2,513

Intangible assets
Goodwill  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 923 923
Contract acquisition costs1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 513 526

1,436 1,449

Equity method investments1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 249 468

Notes receivable
Loans to equity method investees1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 526 558
Loans to timeshare owners  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 289 152
Other notes receivable  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 374 389

1,189 1,099

Other long-term receivables1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 326 387
Deferred taxes, net  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 397 251
Other1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 736 663

$ 8,668 $8,177

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 489 $ 64
Accounts payable1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 570 584
Accrued payroll and benefits  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 508 412
Self-insurance reserves  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 71 43
Other payables and accruals1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 416 385
Liability for guest loyalty program . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 302 282

2,356 1,770

Long-term debt  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 836 1,391
Self-insurance reserves  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 163 169
Liability for guest loyalty program . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 640 502
Other long-term liabilities1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 580 501
Minority interest  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 6

Shareholders’ equity
Class A common stock  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 3

Additional paid-in capital  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,423 3,317
Retained earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,951 1,505
Deferred compensation  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (108) (81)
Treasury stock, at cost  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,197) (865)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9 (41)

4,081 3,838

$ 8,668 $8,177

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1 See Footnote 20, “Related Party Transactions,” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for disclosure of related party amounts.
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Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 2004, January 2, 2004, and January 3, 2003 2004 2003 2002

($ in millions)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income from continuing operations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 594 $ 476 $ 439
Adjustments to reconcile to cash provided by operating activities:

Income from discontinued operations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 7 9
Discontinued operations—gain (loss) on sale/exit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 19 (171)
Depreciation and amortization  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 166 160 187
Minority interest in results of synthetic fuel operation  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (40) 55 —
Income taxes  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (63) (171) (105)
Timeshare activity, net  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 113 (111) (63)
Other  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (77) (73) 223

Working capital changes:
Accounts receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (6) (81) (31)
Other current assets  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (16) 11 60
Accounts payable and accruals  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 218 111 (32)

Net cash provided by operating activities  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 891 403 516

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (181) (210) (292)
Dispositions  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 402 494 729
Loan advances . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (129) (241) (237)
Loan collections and sales  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 276 280 124
Other  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (81) (12) (7)

Net cash provided by investing activities  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 287 311 317

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Commercial paper, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (102) 102
Issuance of long-term debt  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 14 26
Repayment of long-term debt  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (99) (273) (946)
Redemption of convertible debt  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (62) — (347)
Issuance of Class A common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 206 102 35
Dividends paid  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (73) (68) (65)
Purchase of treasury stock  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (664) (373) (252)
Earn-outs received, net  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35 17 —

Net cash used in financing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (637) (683) (1,447)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 541 31 (614)
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 229 198 812

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS, end of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 770 $ 229 $ 198

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 2004, January 2, 2004, and January 3, 2003 2004 2003 2002

($ in millions)

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $596 $502 $277
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Foreign currency translation adjustments  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 43 37 (7)
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 (8) (13)

Total other comprehensive income (loss)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 50 29 (20)

Comprehensive income  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $646 $531 $257

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 2004, January 2, 2004, and January 3, 2003

(in millions, except per share amounts) Accumulated
Common Class A Additional Unearned Treasury Other

Shares Common Paid-in Deferred Retained ESOP Stock, at Comprehensive
Outstanding Stock Capital Compensation Earnings Shares Cost (Loss) Income

240.7 Balance at December 29, 2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $  3 $3,427 $ (49) $ 941 $(291) $ (503) $(50)
— Net income  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — 277 — — —
— Dividends ($0.275 per share)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — (67) — — —
3.0 Employee stock plan issuance and other  . . . . . . . . . . — (203) 6 (25) 291 90 (20)

(7.8) Purchase of treasury stock  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — — (254) —

235.9 Balance at January 3, 2003  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 3,224 (43) 1,126 — (667) (70)
— Net income  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — 502 — — —
— Dividends ($0.295 per share)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — (68) — — —
5.8 Employee stock plan issuance and other  . . . . . . . . . . — 93 (38) (55) — 182 29

(10.5) Purchase of treasury stock  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — — (380) —

231.2 Balance at January 2, 2004  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 3,317 (81) 1,505 — (865) (41)
— Net income  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — 596 — — —
— Dividends ($0.330 per share)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — (75) — — —
8.6 Employee stock plan issuance and other  . . . . . . . . . . — 106 (27) (75) — 322 50

(14.0) Purchase of treasury stock  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — — (654) —

225.8 Balance at December 31, 2004 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $  3 $3,423 $(108) $1,951 $ — $(1,197) $ 9

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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1 S U M M A RY  O F  S I G N I F I C A N T  AC C O U N T I N G  P O L I C I E S

Basis of Presentation
The consolidated financial statements present the results of operations, financial position
and cash flows of Marriott International, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, we, us or
the Company).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial state-
ments, the reported amounts of sales and expenses during the reporting periods and
the disclosures of contingent liabilities. Accordingly, ultimate results could differ from
those estimates. We have reclassified certain prior year amounts to conform to our
2004 presentation.

As a result of the sale of our Senior Living Services communities and management
business and the discontinuation of our Distribution Services business, the balances
and activities of two reportable segments, Senior Living Services and Distribution
Services, have been segregated and reported as discontinued operations for all
periods presented.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements reflect all 
normal and recurring adjustments necessary to present fairly our financial position as
of December 31, 2004, and January 2, 2004, and the results of our operations and cash
flows for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2004, January 2, 2004, and January 3,
2003. We have eliminated all material intercompany transactions and balances between
entities consolidated in these financial statements.

Fiscal Year
Our fiscal year ends on the Friday nearest to December 31. The 2004 and 2003 fiscal
years included 52 weeks, while the 2002 fiscal year included 53 weeks.

Revenue Recognition
Our revenues include (1) base and incentive management fees, (2) franchise fees,
(3) revenues from lodging properties and other businesses owned or leased by us,
(4) timeshare interval sales and services, (5) cost reimbursements, and (6) sales made
by the synthetic fuel operation while consolidated. Management fees comprise a base
fee, which is a percentage of the revenues of hotels, and an incentive fee, which is gen-
erally based on hotel profitability. Franchise fees comprise initial application fees and
continuing royalties generated from our franchise programs, which permit the hotel
owners and operators to use certain of our brand names. Cost reimbursements include
direct and indirect costs that are reimbursed to us by lodging properties that we man-
age or franchise.

Base and Incentive Management Fees: We recognize base fees as revenue when earned
in accordance with the contract. In interim periods and at year-end, we recognize
incentive fees that would be due as if the contract were to terminate at that date, exclu-
sive of any termination fees payable or receivable by us.

Franchise Fee Revenue: We recognize franchise fees as revenue in each accounting
period as fees are earned and become receivable from the franchisee.

Owned and Leased Units: We recognize room sales and revenues from guest services
for our owned and leased units when rooms are occupied and services have been rendered.

Timeshare Intervals: We recognize sales when (1) we have received a minimum of
10 percent of the purchase price for the timeshare interval, (2) the purchaser’s period 
to cancel for a refund has expired, (3) we deem the receivables to be collectible, and 
(4) we have attained certain minimum sales and construction levels. We defer all rev-
enue using the deposit method for sales that do not meet all four of these criteria. For
sales that do not qualify for full revenue recognition as the project has progressed
beyond the preliminary stages but has not yet reached completion, all revenue and profit
are deferred and recognized in earnings using the percentage of completion method.

Cost Reimbursements: We recognize cost reimbursements from managed, franchised
and timeshare properties when we incur the related reimbursable costs.

Synthetic Fuel: Prior to November 7, 2003, and after March 25, 2004, we accounted
for the synthetic fuel operation by consolidating the joint ventures. We recognize rev-
enue from the synthetic fuel operation when the synthetic fuel is produced and sold.
From November 7, 2003, through March 25, 2004, we accounted for the synthetic fuel
operation using the equity method of accounting. See Footnote 7 “Synthetic Fuel” for
additional information.

Other Revenue includes land rent income and other revenue. In 2003, we recorded a
$36 million insurance settlement for lost management fees associated with the New York
Marriott World Trade Center hotel, which was destroyed in the 2001 terrorist attacks.

Ground Leases
We are both the lessor and lessee of land under long-term operating leases, which
include scheduled increases in minimum rents. We recognize these scheduled rent
increases on a straight-line basis over the initial lease terms.

Real Estate Sales
We account for the sales of real estate in accordance with Financial Accounting
Standards (“FAS”) No. 66, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate.” We reduce gains on
sales of real estate by the maximum exposure to loss if we have continuing involvement
with the property and do not transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards of own-
ership. We reduced gains on sales of real estate due to maximum exposure to loss by $1
million in 2004, $4 million in 2003 and $51 million in 2002. In sales transactions where
we retain a management contract, the terms and conditions of the management con-
tract are comparable to the terms and conditions of the management contracts
obtained directly with third-party owners in competitive bid processes.

Profit Sharing Plan
We contribute to a profit sharing plan for the benefit of employees meeting certain
eligibility requirements and electing participation in the plan. Contributions are deter-
mined based on a specified percentage of salary deferrals by participating employees.
Excluding the discontinued Senior Living Services and Distribution Services businesses,
we recognized compensation cost from profit sharing of $70 million in 2004, $53 mil-
lion in 2003 and $54 million in 2002. We recognized compensation cost from profit
sharing of $1 million in 2003 and $8 million in 2002, related to the discontinued Senior
Living Services and Distribution Services businesses.
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Self-Insurance Programs
We are self-insured for certain levels of property, liability, workers’ compensation and
employee medical coverage. We accrue estimated costs of these self-insurance programs
at the present value of projected settlements for known and incurred but not reported
claims. We use a discount rate of 4.8 percent to determine the present value of the pro-
jected settlements, which we consider to be reasonable given our history of settled
claims, including payment patterns and the fixed nature of the individual settlements.

Marriott Rewards
Marriott Rewards is our frequent guest loyalty program. Marriott Rewards members
earn points based on their monetary spending at our lodging operations, purchases of
timeshare intervals, and, to a lesser degree, through participation in affiliated partners’
programs, such as those offered by airlines and credit card companies. Points, which we
accumulate and track on the members’ behalf, can be redeemed for hotel stays at most
of our lodging operations, airline tickets, airline frequent flier program miles, rental
cars and a variety of other awards. Points cannot be redeemed for cash.

We provide Marriott Rewards as a marketing program to participating hotels. We
charge the cost of operating the program, including the estimated cost of award
redemption, to hotels based on members’ qualifying expenditures.

We defer revenue received from managed and franchised properties, Marriott-
owned/leased hotels and program partners equal to the fair value of our future
redemption obligation. We determine the fair value of the future redemption obligation
based on statistical formulas which project timing of future point redemption based on
historical levels, including an estimate of the “breakage” for points that will never be
redeemed and an estimate of the points that will eventually be redeemed. These judg-
mental factors determine the required liability for outstanding points.

Our management and franchise agreements require that we be reimbursed currently
for the costs of operating the program, including marketing, promotion, communica-
tion with, and performing member services for the Marriott Rewards members. Due to
the requirement that properties reimburse us for program operating costs as incurred,
we receive and recognize the balance of the revenue from properties in connection with
the Marriott Rewards program at the time such costs are incurred and expensed. We
recognize the component of revenue from program partners that corresponds to pro-
gram maintenance services over the expected life of the points awarded.

Upon the redemption of points, we recognize as revenue the amounts previously
deferred, and recognize the corresponding expense relating to the costs of the awards
redeemed. Our liability for the Marriott Rewards program was $942 million at
December 31, 2004, and $784 million at January 2, 2004.

Guarantees
We record a liability for the fair value of a guarantee on the date a guarantee is issued
or modified. The offsetting entry depends on the circumstances in which the guarantee
was issued. Funding under the guarantee reduces the recorded liability. When no fund-
ing is forecasted, the liability is amortized into income on a straight-line basis over the
remaining term of the guarantee.

Rebates and Allowances
We participate in various vendor rebate and allowance arrangements as a manager of
hotel properties. There are three types of programs that are common in the hotel
industry that are sometimes referred to as “rebates” or “allowances,” including unre-
stricted rebates, marketing (restricted) rebates and sponsorships. The primary business
purpose of these arrangements is to secure favorable pricing for our hotel owners for
various products and services or enhance resources for promotional campaigns co-
sponsored by certain vendors. More specifically, unrestricted rebates are funds returned
to the buyer, generally based upon volumes or quantities of goods purchased.
Marketing (restricted) allowances are funds allocated by vendor agreements for certain
marketing or other joint promotional initiatives. Sponsorships are funds paid by ven-
dors, generally used by the vendor to gain exposure at meetings and events, which are
accounted for as a reduction of the cost of the event.

We account for rebates and allowances as adjustments of the prices of the vendors’
products and services in accordance with EITF 02-16, “Accounting by a Customer
(Including a Reseller) for Certain Consideration Received from a Vendor.” We show
vendor costs and the reimbursement of those costs as reimbursed costs and cost reim-
bursements revenue, respectively; therefore, rebates are reflected as a reduction of these
line items.

Cash and Equivalents
We consider all highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or
less at date of purchase to be cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash
Restricted cash, totaling $105 million and $139 million at December 31, 2004 and
January 2, 2004, respectively, is recorded in other long-term assets in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheet. Restricted cash primarily consists of deposits received on
timeshare interval sales that are held in escrow until the contract is closed.

Loan Loss Valuation
We measure loan impairment based on the present value of expected future cash flows
discounted at the loan’s original effective interest rate or the estimated fair value of the
collateral. For impaired loans, we establish a specific impairment reserve for the differ-
ence between the recorded investment in the loan and the present value of the expected
future cash flows or the estimated fair value of the collateral. We apply our loan impair-
ment policy individually to all loans in the portfolio and do not aggregate loans for the
purpose of applying such policy. For loans that we have determined to be impaired, we
recognize interest income on a cash basis.

Valuation of Goodwill
We evaluate the fair value of goodwill to assess potential impairments on an annual
basis, or during the year if an event or other circumstance indicates that we may not be
able to recover the carrying amount of the asset. We evaluate the fair value of goodwill
at the reporting unit level and make that determination based upon future cash flow
projections. We record an impairment loss for goodwill when the carrying value of the
intangible asset is less than its estimated fair value.
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Assets Held for Sale
We consider properties to be assets held for sale when management approves and
commits to a formal plan to actively market a property for sale. Upon designation as 
an asset held for sale, we record the carrying value of each property at the lower of its
carrying value or its estimated fair value, less estimated costs to sell, and we stop
recording depreciation expense.

Investments
Except as otherwise required by FIN 46(R), “Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities,” we consolidate entities that we control. We account for investments in joint
ventures using the equity method of accounting when we exercise significant influence
over the venture. If we do not exercise significant influence, we account for the invest-
ment using the cost method of accounting. We account for investments in limited part-
nerships and limited liability companies using the equity method of accounting when
we own more than a minimal investment. Our ownership interest in these equity
method investments varies generally from 10 percent to 50 percent.

Costs Incurred to Sell Real Estate Projects
We capitalize direct costs incurred to sell real estate projects attributable to and recov-
erable from the sales of timeshare interests until the sales are recognized. Costs eligible
for capitalization follow the guidelines of FAS No. 67, “Accounting for Costs and Initial
Rental Operations of Real Estate Projects.” Selling and marketing costs capitalized
under this approach were approximately $89 million and $69 million at December 31,
2004, and January 2, 2004, respectively, and are included in property and equipment 
in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet. If a contract is canceled, we charge
unrecoverable direct selling and marketing costs to expense and record deposits for-
feited as income.

Residual Interests
We periodically sell notes receivable originated by our timeshare segment in connection
with the sale of timeshare intervals. We retain servicing assets and other interests in the
assets transferred to entities that are accounted for as residual interests. We treat the
residual interests, excluding servicing assets, as “trading” securities under the provisions
of FAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” At
the end of each reporting period, we estimate the fair value of the residual interests,
excluding servicing assets, using a discounted cash flow model. We report changes in
the fair values of these residual interests, excluding servicing assets, through the accom-
panying Consolidated Statement of Income. Servicing assets are classified as held to
maturity under the provisions of FAS No. 115 and are recorded at amortized cost.

Derivative Instruments
We use derivative instruments as part of our overall strategy to manage our exposure 
to market risks associated with fluctuations in interest rates and foreign currency
exchange rates. As a matter of policy, we do not use derivatives for trading or
speculative purposes.

We record all derivatives at fair value either as assets or liabilities. We recognize,
currently in earnings, changes in fair value of derivatives not designated as hedging
instruments and of derivatives designated as fair value hedging instruments. Changes
in the fair value of the hedged item in a fair value hedge are recorded as an adjustment
to the carrying amount of the hedged item and recognized in earnings in the same
income statement line item as the change in the fair value of the derivative.

We record the effective portion of changes in fair value of derivatives designated as
cash flow hedging instruments as a component of other comprehensive income and
report the ineffective portion currently in earnings. We reclassify amounts included in
other comprehensive income into earnings in the same period during which the
hedged item affects earnings.

Foreign Operations
The U.S. dollar is the functional currency of our consolidated and unconsolidated
entities operating in the United States. The functional currency for our consolidated
and unconsolidated entities operating outside of the United States is generally the cur-
rency of the environment in which the entity primarily generates and expends cash. For
consolidated entities whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar, we translate their
financial statements into U.S. dollars, and we do the same, as needed, for unconsoli-
dated entities whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar. Assets and liabilities are
translated at the exchange rate in effect as of the financial statement date, and income
statement accounts are translated using the weighted average exchange rate for the
period. Translation adjustments from foreign exchange and the effect of exchange rate
changes on intercompany transactions of a long-term investment nature are included
as a separate component of shareholder’s equity. We report gains and losses from for-
eign exchange rate changes related to intercompany receivables and payables that are
not of a long-term investment nature, as well as gains and losses from foreign currency
transactions, currently in operating costs and expenses, and those amounted to a 
$3 million loss in 2004, a $7 million gain in 2003, and a $6 million loss in 2002.

New Accounting Standards
In December 2004, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants issued
Statement of Position (“SOP”) 04-2, “Accounting for Real Estate Time-sharing
Transactions,” and the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) amended FAS
No. 66, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate,” and FAS No. 67, “Accounting for Costs
and Initial Rental Operations of Real Estate Projects,” to exclude accounting for real
estate time-sharing transactions from these statements. The SOP will be effective for
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005.

Under the SOP, the majority of the costs incurred to sell timeshares will be charged
to expense when incurred. In regard to notes receivable issued in conjunction with a
sale, an estimate of uncollectibility that is expected to occur must be recorded as a
reduction of revenue at the time that profit is recognized on a timeshare sale. Rental and
other operations during holding periods must be accounted for as incidental operations,
which require that any excess costs be recorded as a reduction of inventory costs.
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We estimate that the initial adoption of the SOP, which will be reported as a
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in our fiscal year 2006 
financial statements, will result in a one-time non-cash pre-tax charge of approxi-
mately $150 million, consisting primarily of the write-off of deferred selling costs 
and establishing the required reserve on notes. We estimate that the ongoing impact 
of adoption will not be significant.

In December 2004, the FASB issued FAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based
Payment” (“FAS No. 123R”), which is a revision of FAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation.” FAS No. 123R supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees,” and amends FAS No. 95, “Statement of Cash Flows.” We
will adopt FAS No. 123R at the beginning of our 2005 third quarter.

FAS No. 123R requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants 
of employee stock options, to be recorded as an expense based on their fair values.
The grant-date fair value of employee share options and similar instruments will be
estimated using an option-pricing model adjusted for any unique characteristics of a
particular instrument. If an equity award is modified after the grant date, incremental
compensation cost will be recognized in an amount equal to the excess of the fair
value of the modified award over the fair value of the original award immediately
before the modification.

We estimate that the adoption of FAS No. 123R, using the modified prospective
method, will result in incremental pre-tax expense in fiscal year 2005 of approximately
$20 million, based on our current share-based payment compensation plans and a
mid-year adoption.

Stock-based Compensation
We have several stock-based employee compensation plans that we account for using
the intrinsic value method under the recognition and measurement principles of
Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees.” Accordingly, we do not reflect stock-based employee compensation cost in
net income for our Stock Option Program, the Supplemental Executive Stock Option
awards or the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. We recognized stock-based employee
compensation cost of $31 million, $19 million and $9 million, net of tax, for deferred
share grants, restricted share grants and restricted stock units (2004 and 2003 only) for
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share as if
we had applied the fair value recognition provisions of FAS No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation,” to stock-based employee compensation. We have included
the impact of measured but unrecognized compensation cost and excess tax benefits
credited to additional paid-in-capital in the calculation of the diluted pro forma shares
for all years presented. In addition, we have included the estimated impact of reim-
bursements from third parties.

($ in millions, except per share amounts) 2004 2003 2002

Net income, as reported . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 596 $ 502 $ 277

Add: Stock-based employee compensation 
expense included in reported net income,
net of related tax effects  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31 19 9

Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation 
expense determined under fair value-based 
method for all awards, net of related tax effects 
and estimated reimbursed costs  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (58) (48) (37)

Pro forma net income  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 569 $ 473 $ 249

Earnings per share:

Basic—as reported  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2.63 $2.16 $1.15

Basic—pro forma . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2.51 $2.03 $1.04

Diluted—as reported  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2.48 $2.05 $1.10

Diluted—pro forma . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2.35 $1.94 $0.99

2 R E L AT I O N S H I P  W I T H  M A J O R  C U S TO M E R
As of year-end 2004, Host Marriott Corporation (“Host Marriott”) owned or leased
167 lodging properties operated by us under long-term agreements. The revenues and
income from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interest we rec-
ognized from lodging properties owned/leased by Host Marriott for the last three fiscal
years are shown in the following table:

($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002

Revenues  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2,423 $2,357 $2,400

Income from continuing operations before 
income taxes and minority interest  . . . . . . . . . . . . . 123 141 145

Additionally, Host Marriott is a general partner in several unconsolidated partner-
ships that own lodging properties operated by us under long-term agreements. As of
year-end 2004, Host Marriott was affiliated with 121 such properties operated by us
(including the properties in the Courtyard Joint Venture discussed below). The sales
and income from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interest rec-
ognized by the Company for the last three fiscal years are shown in the following table:

($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002

Revenues  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $329 $329 $387

Income from continuing operations before 
income taxes and minority interest  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 50 56 74

In December 2000, we acquired 120 Courtyard by Marriott hotels through an
unconsolidated joint venture (“the Courtyard Joint Venture”) with an affiliate of Host
Marriott. Prior to the formation of the Courtyard Joint Venture, Host Marriott was a
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general partner in the unconsolidated partnerships that owned the 120 Courtyard by
Marriott hotels. Amounts recognized from lodging properties owned by unconsoli-
dated partnerships discussed above include the following amounts related to these 
120 Courtyard hotels:

($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002

Revenues  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $285 $268 $267

Income from continuing operations before 
income taxes and minority interest  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 47 52 61

In connection with the formation of the Courtyard Joint Venture, we made a loan to
the joint venture. The balance on our mezzanine loan to the Courtyard Joint Venture
was $249 million and $215 million as of December 31, 2004, and January 2, 2004,
respectively. The proceeds of the mezzanine loan have not been, and will not be, used
to pay our management fees, debt service or land rent income. All management fees
relating to the underlying hotels that we recognize in income are paid to us in cash by
the Courtyard Joint Venture.

In December 2004, we and Host Marriott announced the signing of a purchase and
sale agreement by which an institutional investor would obtain a 75 percent interest in
the Courtyard Joint Venture. We expect the transaction, which is subject to certain clos-
ing conditions, to close in early 2005, although we cannot assure you that the sale will
be completed. Currently, we and Host Marriott own equal shares in the 120-property
joint venture, and with the addition of the new equity, our percentage interest in the
joint venture will decline from 50 percent to 21 percent. As a result of the transaction,
the pace of the Courtyard hotel reinventions, a program that renovates and upgrades
Courtyard hotels, will be accelerated.

Upon closing of the transaction:
3 We expect that our existing mezzanine loan to the joint venture (including

accrued interest) totaling approximately $249 million at December 31, 2004,
will be repaid;

3 We expect to make available to the joint venture a seven-year subordinated loan
of approximately $144 million to be funded as reinventions are completed in
2005 and 2006;

3 We expect to enter into a new long-term management agreement with the joint
venture. As the termination of the existing management agreement is probable,
we have written off our deferred contract costs related to the existing contract in
the 2004 fourth quarter, resulting in a charge of $13 million; and

3 Upon closing of the transaction we expect to record a gain associated with the
repayment of the mezzanine loan, which will be substantially offset by our por-
tion of the joint venture’s costs of prepaying an existing senior loan.

We lease land to the Courtyard Joint Venture that had an aggregate book value of
$184 million at December 31, 2004. This land has been pledged to secure debt of the
lessees. We are currently deferring receipt of rentals on this land to permit the lessees to
meet their debt service requirements.

We have provided Host Marriott with financing for a portion of the cost of acquir-
ing properties to be operated or franchised by us, and may continue to provide financ-
ing to Host Marriott in the future. The outstanding principal balance of these loans was
$2 million and $3 million at December 31, 2004, and January 2, 2004, respectively, and

we recognized less than $1 million in each of 2004 and 2003 and $1 million in 2002 in
interest and fee income under these credit agreements with Host Marriott.

We have guaranteed the performance of Host Marriott and certain of its affiliates 
to lenders and other third parties. These guarantees were limited to $8 million at
December 31, 2004. We have made no payments pursuant to these guarantees.

3 N OT E S  R E C E I VA B L E

($ in millions) 2004 2003

Loans to timeshare owners  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 315 $ 167

Lodging senior loans  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 75 110

Lodging mezzanine and other loans  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 867 886

1,257 1,163

Less current portion  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (68) (64)

$1,189 $1,099

Amounts due within one year are classified as current assets in the caption accounts
and notes receivable in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet, including $26 mil-
lion and $15 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2004, and January 2, 2004, related
to the loans to timeshare owners.

Our notes receivable are due as follows: 2005 – $68 million; 2006 – $314 million;
2007 – $134 million; 2008 – $76 million; 2009 – $31 million; and $634 million thereafter.

At December 31, 2004, our recorded investment in impaired loans was $181 million.
We have a $92 million allowance for credit losses, leaving $89 million of our investment
in impaired loans for which there is no related allowance for credit losses.

The following table summarizes the activity related to our notes receivable reserve
for the years ended January 3, 2003, January 2, 2004, and December 31, 2004:

($ in millions) Notes Receivable Reserve

December 29, 2001  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 98

Additions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12

Write-offs  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (16)

Transfers and other  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16

January 3, 2003 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 110

Additions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15

Reversals  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (8)

Write-offs  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (15)

Transfers and other  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28

January 2, 2004 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 130

Additions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

Reversals  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (11)

Write-offs  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (44)

Transfers and other  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14

December 31, 2004  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 92
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4 P RO P E RT Y  A N D  E Q U I P M E N T

($ in millions) 2004 2003

Land  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 371 $ 424

Buildings and leasehold improvements  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 642 606

Furniture and equipment  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 771 680

Timeshare properties  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,186 1,286

Construction in progress . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 100 74

3,070 3,070

Accumulated depreciation  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (681) (557)

$2,389 $2,513

We record property and equipment at cost, including interest, rent and real estate
taxes incurred during development and construction. Interest capitalized as a cost of
property and equipment totaled $16 million in 2004, $25 million in 2003 and $43 mil-
lion in 2002. We capitalize the cost of improvements that extend the useful life of prop-
erty and equipment when incurred. These capitalized costs may include structural
costs, equipment, fixtures, floor and wall coverings and paint. All repair and mainte-
nance costs are expensed as incurred. We compute depreciation using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets (three to 40 years). Depreciation
expense, including amounts related to discontinued operations, totaled $133 million 
in 2004, $132 million in 2003, and $145 million in 2002. We amortize leasehold
improvements over the shorter of the asset life or lease term.

5 D I S P O S I T I O N S

2004
We sold two lodging properties for $79 million in cash, net of transaction costs,
recognized pre-tax gains totaling $6 million and deferred recognition of gains totaling
$1 million due to our continuing involvement with the two properties. We accounted
for both sales under the full accrual method in accordance with FAS No. 66, “Accounting
for Sales of Real Estate,” and will continue to operate the properties under long-term
management agreements. We also sold 30 land parcels for $55 million in cash, net of
transaction costs, and we recorded pre-tax gains of $12 million.

Additionally, we sold our Ramada International Hotels & Resorts franchised 
brand, which consisted primarily of investments in franchise contracts and trademarks
and licenses outside of the United States, to Cendant Corporation’s Hotel Group for 
$33 million in cash, net of transaction costs, and recorded a pre-tax gain of $4 million.

Cendant exercised its option to redeem our interest in the Two Flags joint venture,
and as a result Cendant acquired the trademarks and licenses for the Ramada and Days
Inn lodging brands in the United States. We recorded a pre-tax gain of approximately
$13 million in connection with this transaction. We also sold our interests in two joint
ventures for $13 million in cash and recognized pre-tax gains of $6 million.

2003
We sold three lodging properties for $138 million in cash, net of transaction costs. We
accounted for the three property sales under the full accrual method in accordance with
FAS No. 66, and we will continue to operate the properties under long-term management

agreements. The buyer of one property leased the property for a term of 20 years to a
consolidated joint venture between the buyer and us. The lease payments are fixed for the
first five years and variable thereafter. Our gain on the sale of $5 million will be recog-
nized on a straight-line basis in proportion to the gross rental charged to expense, and we
recognized $1 million of pre-tax gains in both 2003 and 2004. We recognized a $1 million
gain in 2003 associated with the sale of the other two properties and there are no remain-
ing deferred gains. During the year, we also sold three parcels of land for $10 million in
cash, net of transaction costs, and recognized a pre-tax loss of $1 million. Additionally, we
sold our interests in three international joint ventures for approximately $25 million and
recorded pre-tax gains of approximately $21 million.

During the third quarter of 2003, we completed the sale of an approximately 50 per-
cent interest in the synthetic fuel operation. We received cash and promissory notes
totaling $25 million at closing, and we are receiving additional profits that are expected
to continue over the life of the venture based on the actual amount of tax credits allo-
cated to the purchaser. See Footnote 7, “Synthetic Fuel” for further discussion.

2002
We sold three lodging properties and six pieces of undeveloped land for $330 million 
in cash. We will continue to operate two of the hotels under long-term management
agreements. We accounted for two of the three property sales under the full accrual
method in accordance with FAS No. 66. The buyer did not make adequate minimum
initial investments in the remaining property, which we accounted for under the cost
recovery method. The sale of one of the properties was to a joint venture in which we
have a minority interest and was sold at a loss. We recognized no pre-tax gains in either
2004 or 2003 and $6 million of pre-tax gains in 2002. We will recognize the remaining
$50 million of pre-tax gains in subsequent years, provided certain contingencies in the
sales contracts expire.

We also sold our 11 percent investment in Interval International, a timeshare
exchange company, for approximately $63 million and recorded a pre-tax gain of
$44 million.

6 T I M E S H A R E  N OT E  S A L E S
We periodically sell, with limited recourse, through special purpose entities, notes
receivable originated by our timeshare business in connection with the sale of time-
share intervals. We continue to service the notes, and transfer all proceeds collected 
to special purpose entities. We retain servicing assets and other interests in the notes
which are accounted for as residual interests. The interests are limited to the present
value of cash available after paying financing expenses and program fees, and absorbing
credit losses. We have included gains from the sales of timeshare notes receivable total-
ing $64 million in each of 2004 and 2003 and $60 million in 2002 in gains and other
income in the accompanying Consolidated Statement of Income. We had residual
interests of $190 million and $203 million, respectively, at December 31, 2004 and
January 2, 2004, which are recorded in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet
as other long-term receivables of $127 million and $120 million, respectively, and other
current assets of $63 million and $83 million, respectively.

At the date of sale and at the end of each reporting period, we estimate the fair 
value of residual interests, excluding servicing assets, using a discounted cash flow
model. These transactions may utilize interest rate swaps to protect the net interest
margin associated with the beneficial interest. We report in income changes in the fair
value of residual interests, excluding servicing assets, as they are considered trading
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securities under the provisions of FAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in
Debt and Equity Securities.” We used the following key assumptions to measure the fair
value of the residual interests, excluding servicing assets, at the date of sale during the
years ended December 31, 2004, January 2, 2004, and January 3, 2003: average discount
rate of 7.80 percent, 4.95 percent and 5.69 percent, respectively; average expected
annual prepayments, including defaults, of 18.61 percent, 17.00 percent and 16.41 per-
cent, respectively; expected weighted average life of prepayable notes receivable, exclud-
ing prepayments and defaults, of 83 months, 85 months and 69 months, respectively;
and expected weighted average life of prepayable notes receivable, including prepay-
ments and defaults, of 42 months, 44 months and 42 months, respectively. Our key
assumptions are based on experience.

We used the following key assumptions in measuring the fair value of the residual
interests, excluding servicing assets, in our six outstanding note sales at December 31,
2004: an average discount rate of 7.77 percent; an average expected annual prepayment
rate, including defaults, of 15.89 percent; an expected weighted average life of pre-
payable notes receivable, excluding prepayments and defaults, of 63 months; and an
expected weighted average life of prepayable notes receivable, including prepayments
and defaults of 38 months.

At the date of sale, we measure servicing assets at their allocated previous carrying
amount based on relative fair value. Servicing assets are classified as held to maturity
under the provisions of FAS No. 115 and are recorded at amortized cost.

Cash flows between us and third-party purchasers during the years ended 
December 31, 2004, January 2, 2004, and January 3, 2003, were as follows: net proceeds
to us from new timeshare note sales of $312 million, $231 million and $341 million,
respectively; repurchases by us of defaulted loans (over 150 days overdue) of $18 mil-
lion, $19 million and $16 million, respectively; servicing fees received by us of $4 mil-
lion, $3 million and $3 million, respectively; and cash flows received from our retained
interests of $90 million, $47 million and $28 million, respectively.

At December 31, 2004, $810 million of principal remains outstanding in all sales in
which we have a retained residual interest. Delinquencies of more than 90 days at
December 31, 2004, amounted to $4 million. Net of recoveries, we incurred no losses
on defaulted loans that were resolved during the year ended December 31, 2004. We
have been able to resell timeshare units underlying defaulted loans without incurring
material losses.

On November 21, 2002, we repurchased notes receivable with a principal balance of
$381 million and immediately sold $365 million of those notes, along with $135 mil-
lion of additional notes, in a $500 million sale to an investor group. We have included
net proceeds from these transactions of $89 million, including repayments of interest
rate swaps on the $381 million of repurchased notes receivable, in the net proceeds
from new timeshare note sales disclosed above. We realized a gain of $14 million, pri-
marily associated with the $135 million of additional notes sold, which is included in
the $60 million gain on the sales of notes receivable for fiscal year 2002 disclosed above.

We have completed a stress test on the fair value of the residual interests with the
objective of measuring the change in value associated with independent changes in
individual key variables. The methodology used applied unfavorable changes that
would be considered statistically significant for the key variables of prepayment rate,
discount rate and weighted average remaining term. The fair value of the residual inter-
ests was $190 million at December 31, 2004, before any stress test changes were applied.
An increase of 100 basis points in the prepayment rate would decrease the year-end
valuation by $3 million, or 1.7 percent, and an increase of 200 basis points in the

prepayment rate would decrease the year-end valuation by $7 million, or 3.4 percent.
An increase of 100 basis points in the discount rate would decrease the year-end valua-
tion by $4 million, or 2.2 percent, and an increase of 200 basis points in the discount
rate would decrease the year-end valuation by $8 million, or 4.4 percent. A decline of
two months in the weighted-average remaining term would decrease the year-end valu-
ation by $2 million, or 1 percent, and a decline of four months in the weighted-average
remaining term would decrease the year-end valuation by $4 million, or 2.1 percent.

7 S Y N T H E T I C  F U E L

Operations
Our synthetic fuel operation currently consists of our interest in four coal-based
synthetic fuel production facilities (the “Facilities”), two of which are located at a 
coal mine in Saline County, Illinois, with the remaining two located at a coal mine in
Jefferson County, Alabama. Three of the four plants are held in one entity, and one of
the plants is held in a separate entity. The synthetic fuel produced at the Facilities
through 2007 qualifies for tax credits based on Section 29 of the Internal Revenue Code
(credits are not available for fuel produced after 2007). Although the Facilities incur
significant losses, these losses are more than offset by the tax credits generated under
Section 29, which reduce our income tax expense.

At both of the locations, the synthetic fuel operation has entered into long-term site
leases at sites that are adjacent to large underground mines as well as barge load-out
facilities on navigable rivers. In addition, the synthetic fuel operation has entered into
long-term coal purchase agreements with the owners of the adjacent coal mines and
long-term synthetic fuel sales contracts with the Tennessee Valley Authority and with
Alabama Power Company, two major utilities. These contracts ensure that the opera-
tion has long-term agreements to purchase coal and sell synthetic fuel, covering
approximately 80 percent of the productive capacity of the facilities. From time to time,
the synthetic fuel operation supplements these base contracts, as opportunities arise, by
entering into spot contracts to buy coal from these or other coal mines and sell syn-
thetic fuel to different end users. The operation is slightly seasonal as the synthetic fuel
is mainly burned to produce electricity and electricity use peaks in the summer in the
markets served by the synthetic fuel operation. The long-term contracts can generally
be canceled by us in the event that we choose not to operate the Facilities or that the
synthetic fuel produced at the Facilities does not qualify for tax credits under Section 29
of the Internal Revenue Code.

The synthetic fuel operation has entered into a long-term operations and mainte-
nance agreement with an experienced manager of synthetic fuel facilities. This manager
is responsible for staffing the facilities, operating and maintaining the machinery and
conducting routine maintenance on behalf of the synthetic fuel operation.

Finally, the synthetic fuel operation has entered into a long-term license and binder
purchase agreement with Headwaters Incorporated, which permits the operation to
utilize a carboxylated polystyrene copolymer emulsion patented by Headwaters and
manufactured by Dow Chemical that is mixed with coal to produce a qualified syn-
thetic fuel.

Our Investment
As a result of a put option associated with the June 21, 2003, sale of a 50 percent own-
ership interest in the synthetic fuel entities, we consolidated the two synthetic fuel joint
ventures from that date through November 6, 2003. Effective November 7, 2003,
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because the put option was voided, we began accounting for the synthetic fuel joint
ventures using the equity method of accounting. Beginning March 26, 2004, as a result
of adopting FIN 46(R), we have again consolidated the synthetic fuel joint ventures,
and we reflect our partner’s share of the operating losses as minority interest.

Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) Placed-in-Service Challenge
In July 2004, IRS field auditors issued a notice of proposed adjustment and later a
Summary Report to PacifiCorp, the previous owner of the Facilities, that included a
challenge to the placed-in-service dates of three of the four synthetic fuel facilities
owned by one of our synthetic fuel joint ventures. One of the conditions to qualify for
tax credits under Section 29 of the Internal Revenue Code is that the production facility
must have been placed in service before July 1, 1998.

We strongly believe that all the facilities meet the placed-in-service requirement.
Although we are engaged in discussions with the IRS and are confident this issue will
be resolved in our favor and not result in a material charge to us, we cannot assure you
as to the ultimate outcome of this matter. If ultimately resolved against us we could be
prevented from realizing projected future tax credits and cause us to reverse previously
utilized tax credits, requiring payment of substantial additional taxes. Since acquiring
the plants, we have recognized approximately $435 million of tax credits from all four
plants through December 31, 2004. The tax credits recognized through December 31,
2004, associated with the three facilities in question totaled approximately $330 million.

On October 6, 2004, we entered into amendment agreements with our synthetic fuel
partner that result in a shift in the allocation of tax credits between us. On the synthetic
fuel facility that is not being reviewed by the IRS, our partner increased its allocation of
tax credits from approximately 50 percent to 90 percent through March 31, 2005, and
pays a higher price per tax credit to us for that additional share of tax credits. With
respect to the three synthetic fuel facilities under IRS review, our partner reduced its
allocation of tax credits from approximately 50 percent to an average of roughly 5 per-
cent through March 31, 2005. If the IRS’ placed-in-service challenge regarding the three
facilities is not successfully resolved by March 31, 2005, our partner will have the right
to return its ownership interest in those three facilities to us at that time. We will have
the flexibility to continue to operate at current levels, reduce production and/or sell an
interest to another party. If there is a successful resolution by March 31, 2005, our part-
ner’s share of the tax credits from all four facilities will return to approximately 50 per-
cent. In any event, on March 31, 2005, our share of the tax credits from the one facility
not under review will return to approximately 50 percent.

8 D I S C O N T I N U E D  O P E R AT I O N S

Senior Living Services
During 2002, we completed the sale of 41 properties for $210 million and recorded an
after-tax loss of $2 million. On December 30, 2002, we entered into a definitive agree-
ment to sell our senior living management business to Sunrise Senior Living, Inc.
(“Sunrise”) and to sell nine senior living communities to CNL Retirement Properties,
Inc. (“CNL”) and recorded an after-tax charge of $131 million. We completed the sales
to Sunrise and CNL, in addition to the related sale of a parcel of land to Sunrise in
March 2003, for $266 million. We recorded after-tax gains of $19 million in 2003.

Also, on December 30, 2002, we purchased 14 senior living communities for approxi-
mately $15 million in cash, plus the assumption of $227 million in debt, from an unre-
lated owner. We had previously agreed to provide a form of credit enhancement on the
outstanding debt related to these communities. Management approved and committed
to a plan to sell these communities within 12 months. As part of that plan, on March 31,
2003, we acquired all of the subordinated credit-enhanced mortgage securities relating
to the 14 communities in a transaction in which we issued $46 million of unsecured
Marriott International, Inc. notes, due April 2004. In the 2003 third quarter, we sold the
14 communities to CNL for approximately $184 million. We provided a $92 million
acquisition loan to CNL in connection with the sale. Sunrise currently operates, and will
continue to operate, the 14 communities under long-term management agreements. We
recorded a gain, net of taxes, of $1 million.

The operating results of our senior living segment are reported in discontinued
operations during the years ended January 2, 2004, and January 3, 2003, and the
remaining assets and liabilities were classified as assets held for sale and liabilities of
businesses held for sale, respectively, on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet
at January 3, 2003.

The following table provides additional income statement and balance sheet infor-
mation relating to the Senior Living Services business:

($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002

Income Statement Summary

Sales  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $184 $ 802

Pre-tax income on operations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ 11 $ 37

Tax provision  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (4) (14)

Income on operations, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ 7 $ 23

Pre-tax gain (loss) on disposal  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ 31 $(141)

Tax (provision) benefit  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (12) 10

Gain (loss) on disposal, net of tax  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ 19 $(131)

Balance Sheet Summary

Property, plant and equipment  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ — $ 434

Goodwill  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 115

Other assets  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 54

Liabilities  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 317

The tax benefit in 2002 of $10 million associated with the loss on disposal includes
$45 million of additional taxes related to goodwill with no tax basis.

Distribution Services
In the third quarter of 2002, we completed a previously announced strategic review of
our Distribution Services business and decided to exit that business. We completed that
exit during the fourth quarter of 2002 through a combination of transferring certain
facilities, closing other facilities and other suitable arrangements. In the year ended
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January 3, 2003, we recognized a pre-tax charge of $65 million in connection with the
decision to exit this business. The charge includes (1) $15 million for payments to third
parties to subsidize their assumption of, or in some cases to terminate, existing distri-
bution or warehouse lease contracts; (2) $9 million for severance costs; (3) $10 million
related to the adjusting of fixed assets to net realizable values; (4) $2 million related to
inventory losses; (5) $15 million for losses on equipment leases; (6) $10 million for
losses on warehouse leases; and (7) $4 million of other associated charges.

The following table provides additional income statement and balance sheet infor-
mation relating to the Distribution Services business:

($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002

Income Statement Summary

Sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ — $1,376

Pre-tax income (loss)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3 $ — $ (24)

Tax (provision) benefit  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1) — 10

Income (loss), net of tax  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2 $ — $ (14)

Pre-tax exit costs  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ — $ (65)

Tax benefit  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 25

Exit costs, net of tax  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ — $ (40)

Balance Sheet Summary

Property, plant and equipment  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ — $ 9

Other assets  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 21

Liabilities  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 49

9 G O O DW I L L  A N D  I N TA N G I B L E  A S S E T S

($ in millions) 2004 2003

Contract acquisition costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 738 $ 730

Accumulated amortization  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (225) (204)

$ 513 $ 526

Goodwill  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,051 $1,051

Accumulated amortization  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (128) (128)

$ 923 $ 923

We capitalize costs incurred to acquire management, franchise, and license agree-
ments that are both direct and incremental. We amortize these costs on a straight-line
basis over the initial term of the agreements, typically 15 to 30 years. Amortization
expense, including amounts related to discontinued operations, totaled $33 million in
2004, $28 million in 2003 and $42 million in 2002.

10 S H A R E H O L D E R S ’ E Q U I T Y
Eight hundred million shares of our Class A Common Stock, with a par value of $.01
per share, are authorized. Ten million shares of preferred stock, without par value, are
authorized, 200,000 shares have been issued, 100,000 of which were for the Employee
Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) and 100,000 of which were for Capped Convertible
Preferred Stock. As of December 31, 2004, there were no outstanding shares of the
ESOP stock, and all the shares of the Capped Convertible Preferred Stock shares were
retired and cancelled.

On March 27, 1998, our Board of Directors adopted a shareholder rights plan under
which one preferred stock purchase right was distributed for each share of our Class A
Common Stock. Each right entitles the holder to buy 1/1000th of a share of a newly
issued series of junior participating preferred stock of the Company at an exercise price
of $175. The rights may not presently be exercised, but will be exercisable 10 days after
a person or group acquires beneficial ownership of 20 percent or more of our Class A
Common Stock or begins a tender or exchange for 30 percent or more of our Class A
Common Stock. Shares owned by a person or group on March 27, 1998, and held con-
tinuously thereafter, are exempt for purposes of determining beneficial ownership
under the rights plan. The rights are nonvoting and will expire on the tenth anniversary
of the adoption of the shareholder rights plan unless previously exercised or redeemed
by us for $.01 each. If we are involved in a merger or certain other business combina-
tions not approved by the Board of Directors, each right entitles its holder, other than
the acquiring person or group, to purchase common stock of either the Company or
the acquirer having a value of twice the exercise price of the right.

During the second quarter of 2000, we established an employee stock ownership
plan solely to fund employer contributions to the profit sharing plan. The ESOP
acquired 100,000 shares of special-purpose Company convertible preferred stock
(ESOP Preferred Stock) for $1 billion. The ESOP Preferred Stock had a stated value and
liquidation preference of $10,000 per share, paid a quarterly dividend of 1 percent of
the stated value, and was convertible into our Class A Common Stock at any time based
on the amount of our contributions to the ESOP and the market price of the common
stock on the conversion date, subject to certain caps and a floor price. We held a note
from the ESOP, which was eliminated upon consolidation, for the purchase price of the
ESOP Preferred Stock. The shares of ESOP Preferred Stock were pledged as collateral
for the repayment of the ESOP’s note, and those shares were released from the pledge
as principal on the note was repaid. Shares of ESOP Preferred Stock released from the
pledge were redeemable for cash based on the value of the common stock into which
those shares could be converted. Principal and interest payments on the ESOP’s debt
were forgiven periodically to fund contributions to the ESOP and release shares of
ESOP Preferred Stock. Unearned ESOP shares were reflected within shareholders’
equity and amortized as shares of ESOP Preferred Stock were released and cash was
allocated to employees’ accounts. The fair market value of the unearned ESOP shares at
December 28, 2001, was $263 million. The last of the shares of ESOP Preferred Stock
were released to fund contributions as of July 18, 2002, at which time the remainder of
the principal and interest due on the ESOP’s note was forgiven. As of December 31,
2004, there were no outstanding shares of ESOP Preferred Stock.

Our accumulated other comprehensive income of $9 million and our accumulated
other comprehensive loss of $41 million at December 31, 2004, and January 2, 2004,
respectively, consists primarily of fair value changes of certain financial instruments
and foreign currency translation adjustments.
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11 I N C O M E  TA X E S
Total deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2004, and January 2, 2004,
were as follows:

($ in millions) 2004 2003

Deferred tax assets  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 834 $ 698

Deferred tax liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (275) (232)

Net deferred taxes  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 559 $ 466

The tax effect of each type of temporary difference and carryforward that gives rise
to a significant portion of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2004,
and January 2, 2004, were as follows:

($ in millions) 2004 2003

Self-insurance  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 24 $ 35

Employee benefits  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 194 166

Deferred income  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35 45

Other reserves  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 78 83

Frequent guest program  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 65 54

Tax credits  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 269 203

Net operating loss carryforwards  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 51 48

Timeshare financing  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (22) (8)

Property, equipment and intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (123) (127)

Other, net  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 4

Deferred taxes  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 574 503

Less: valuation allowance  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (15) (37)

Net deferred taxes  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 559 $ 466

At December 31, 2004, we had approximately $51 million of tax credits that expire
through 2024, $218 million of tax credits that do not expire and $210 million of net
operating losses, of which $139 million expire through 2023. The valuation allowance
related to foreign net operating losses decreased as a result of our forecast of the realiz-
ability of the deferred tax asset, including the implementation of tax planning strategies.

We have made no provision for U.S. income taxes or additional foreign taxes on the
cumulative unremitted earnings of non-U.S. subsidiaries ($402 million as of December
31, 2004) because we consider these earnings to be permanently invested. These earn-
ings could become subject to additional taxes if remitted as dividends, loaned to us or a
U.S. affiliate or if we sold our interests in the affiliates. We cannot practically estimate
the amount of additional taxes that might be payable on the unremitted earnings.

The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (“the Jobs Act”), enacted on October 22,
2004, provides for a temporary 85 percent dividends received deduction on certain for-
eign earnings repatriated during a one-year period. The deduction would result in an
approximate 5.25 percent federal tax rate on the repatriated earnings. To qualify for the
deduction, the earnings must be reinvested in the United States pursuant to a domestic
reinvestment plan established by a company’s chief executive officer and approved by
the company’s board of directors. Certain other criteria in the Jobs Act must be satis-
fied as well. For Marriott, the one-year period during which the qualifying distributions
can be made is fiscal 2005.

We are in the process of evaluating whether we will repatriate foreign earnings
under the repatriation provisions of the Jobs Act, and if so, the amount that will be
repatriated. The range of reasonably possible amounts that we are considering for repa-
triation, which would be eligible for the temporary deduction, is zero to $500 million.
We are awaiting the issuance of further regulatory guidance and passage of statutory
technical corrections with respect to certain provisions in the Jobs Act prior to deter-
mining the amounts we will repatriate. We expect to determine the amounts and
sources of foreign earnings to be repatriated, if any, during the fourth quarter of fiscal
2005. The income tax effects of repatriation, if any, cannot be reasonably estimated at
this time.

We are not yet in a position to determine the impact of a qualifying repatriation,
should we choose to make one, on our income tax expense for fiscal 2005, the amount
of our indefinitely reinvested foreign earnings, or the amount of our deferred tax liabil-
ity with respect to foreign earnings.

The benefit (provision) for income taxes consists of:

($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002

Current – Federal  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(153) $ 5 $(129)

– State  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (34) (28) (42)

– Foreign  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (29) (25) (31)

(216) (48) (202)

Deferred – Federal  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 90 73 146

– State  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 2 24

– Foreign  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21 16 —

116 91 170

$(100) $ 43 $ (32)

The current tax provision does not reflect the benefits attributable to us relating to
our ESOP of $70 million in 2002 or the exercise of employee stock options of $79 mil-
lion in 2004, $40 million in 2003 and $25 million in 2002. Included in the above
amounts are tax credits of $148 million in 2004, $214 million in 2003 and $164 million
in 2002. The taxes applicable to other comprehensive income are not material.
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A reconciliation of the U.S. statutory tax rate to our effective income tax rate for
continuing operations follows:

2004 2003 2002

U.S. statutory tax rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35.0)% 35.0)% 35.0)%

State income taxes, net of U.S. tax benefit  . . . . . . . . . . 2.9 3.8 4.0

Minority interest  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.4 — —

Reduction in deferred taxes  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.2 — —

Change in valuation allowance  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3.3) (3.2) —

Foreign income  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1.4) (1.1) (1.5)

Tax credits  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (22.6) (43.9) (34.8)

Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 3.6

Other, net  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.1 0.6 0.5

Effective rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15.3)% (8.8)% 6.8)%

Cash paid for income taxes, net of refunds, was $164 million in 2004, $144 million
in 2003 and $107 million in 2002.

12 L E A S E S
We have summarized our future obligations under operating leases at December 31,
2004, below:

Fiscal Year ($ in millions)

2005  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 121

2006  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 112

2007  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 121

2008  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 121

2009  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 115

Thereafter  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 989

Total minimum lease payments  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,579

Most leases have initial terms of up to 20 years and contain one or more renewal
options, generally for five- or 10-year periods. These leases provide for minimum
rentals and additional rentals based on our operations of the leased property. The total
minimum lease payments above include $544 million, representing obligations of con-
solidated subsidiaries that are non-recourse to Marriott International, Inc.

Rent expense consists of:

($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002

Minimum rentals  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $216 $201 $222

Additional rentals  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 93 68 75

$309 $269 $297

The totals above exclude minimum rent expenses of $8 million and $34 million, and
additional rent expenses of $1 million and $4 million, for 2003 and 2002, respectively,
related to the discontinued Senior Living Services business. The totals also do not
include minimum rent expenses of $42 million for 2002 related to the discontinued
Distribution Services business.

13 LO N G - T E R M  D E B T
Our long-term debt at December 31, 2004, and January 2, 2004, consisted of
the following:

($ in millions) 2004 2003

Senior Notes:

Series B, interest rate of 6.875%, maturing November 15, 2005 . . . . $ 200 $ 200

Series C, interest rate of 7.875%, maturing September 15, 2009  . . . 299 299

Series D, interest rate of 8.125%, maturing April 1, 2005  . . . . . . . . . 275 275

Series E, interest rate of 7.0%, maturing January 15, 2008  . . . . . . . . 293 293

Other senior note, interest rate of 3.114% at January 2, 2004,
matured April 1, 2004  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 46

Mortgage debt, average interest rate of 7.9%, maturing May 15, 2025  . . . 174 178

Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 84 102

LYONs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 62

1,325 1,455

Less current portion  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (489) (64)

$ 836 $1,391

As of December 31, 2004, all debt, other than mortgage debt and $10 million of
other debt, is unsecured.

We have $500 million available for future offerings under “universal shelf” registra-
tion statements we have filed with the SEC.

We are party to two multicurrency revolving credit facilities that provide for aggre-
gate borrowings of up to $2 billion; a $1.5 billion facility entered into in July 2001 that
expires in July 2006; and a $500 million facility entered into in August 2003 that expires
in August 2006. Borrowings under the facilities bear interest at the London Interbank
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Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus a spread, based on our public debt rating. Additionally, we
pay annual fees on the facilities at a rate also based on our public debt rating.

We are in compliance with covenants in our loan agreements, that require the main-
tenance of certain financial ratios and minimum shareholders’ equity, and also include,
among other things, limitations on additional indebtedness and the pledging of assets.

Aggregate debt maturities are: 2005 - $489 million; 2006 - $15 million; 2007 - $12
million; 2008 - $306 million; 2009 - $311 million and $192 million thereafter.

Cash paid for interest (including discontinued operations), net of amounts capital-
ized, was $105 million in 2004, $94 million in 2003 and $71 million in 2002.

On April 7, 2004, we sent notice to the holders of our Liquid Yield Option Notes
due 2021 (“Notes”) that, subject to the terms of the indenture governing the Notes, we
would purchase for cash, at the option of each holder, any Notes tendered by the
Holder and not withdrawn on May 10, 2004, at a purchase price of $880.50 per $1,000
principal amount at maturity.

On May 11, 2004, Marriott repurchased all of the outstanding Notes for aggregate
cash consideration of approximately $62 million.

14 E A R N I N G S  P E R  S H A R E
The following table illustrates the reconciliation of the earnings and number of shares
used in the basic and diluted earnings per share calculations.

(in millions, except per share amounts) 2004 2003 2002

Computation of Basic Earnings Per Share

Income from continuing operations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 594 $ 476 $ 439

Weighted average shares outstanding . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 226.6 232.5 240.3

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations  . . . . $2.62 $2.05 $1.83

Computation of Diluted Earnings Per Share

Income from continuing operations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 594 $ 476 $ 439

After-tax interest expense on convertible debt  . . . . . . . . . . — — 4

Income from continuing operations for diluted 
earnings per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 594 $ 476 $ 443

Weighted average shares outstanding . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 226.6 232.5 240.3

Effect of dilutive securities

Employee stock option plan  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8.4 6.6 6.2

Deferred stock incentive plan  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4.3 4.8 5.2

Restricted stock units  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.9 0.6 —

Convertible debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.3 0.9 2.9

Shares for diluted earnings per share  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 240.5 245.4 254.6

Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations  . . $2.47 $1.94 $1.74

We compute the effect of dilutive securities using the treasury stock method and
average market prices during the period. We determine dilution based on earnings
from continuing operations.

In accordance with FAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share,” we do not include the follow-
ing stock options in our calculation of diluted earnings per share because the option
exercise prices are greater than the average market price for our Class A Common Stock
for the applicable period:

(a) for the year ended December 31, 2004, no stock options;
(b) for the year ended January 2, 2004, 5.7 million stock options; and
(c) for the year ended January 3, 2003, 6.9 million stock options.

15 E M P LOY E E  S TO C K  P L A N S
We issue stock options, deferred shares, restricted shares and restricted stock units
under our 2002 Comprehensive Stock and Cash Incentive Plan (the “Comprehensive
Plan”). Under the Comprehensive Plan, we may award to participating employees 
(1) options to purchase our Class A Common Stock (Stock Option Program and
Supplemental Executive Stock Option awards), (2) deferred shares of our Class A
Common Stock, (3) restricted shares of our Class A Common Stock, and (4) restricted
stock units of our Class A Common Stock. In addition, in 2004 we had an employee
stock purchase plan (Stock Purchase Plan). In accordance with the provisions of
Opinion No. 25 of the Accounting Principles Board, we recognize no compensation
cost for the Stock Option Program, the Supplemental Executive Stock Option awards
or the Stock Purchase Plan. We recognize compensation cost for the restricted stock,
deferred shares and restricted stock unit awards.

Deferred shares granted to directors, officers and key employees under the
Comprehensive Plan generally vest over 5 to 10 years in annual installments commenc-
ing one year after the date of grant. We granted six thousand deferred shares during
2004. Compensation cost, net of tax, recognized during 2004, 2003 and 2002 was
$4 million, $7 million and $6 million, respectively. At December 31, 2004, there was
approximately $14 million in deferred compensation related to deferred shares.

Restricted shares under the Comprehensive Plan are issued to officers and key
employees and distributed over a number of years in annual installments, subject to
certain prescribed conditions, including continued employment. We recognize com-
pensation expense for the restricted shares over the restriction period equal to the fair
market value of the shares on the date of issuance. We awarded no restricted shares
under this plan during 2004. We recognized compensation cost, net of tax, of $4 mil-
lion in 2004, $4 million in 2003 and $3 million in 2002. At December 31, 2004, there
was approximately $10 million in deferred compensation related to restricted shares.

Restricted stock units under the Comprehensive Plan are issued to certain officers
and key employees and vest over four years in annual installments commencing one
year after the date of grant. We recognize compensation expense for the fair market
value of the shares over the vesting period. Included in the 2004 and 2003 compensa-
tion costs is $23 million and $8 million, respectively, net of tax, related to the grant of
approximately 1.6 million units and 1.9 million units, respectively, under the restricted
stock unit plan, which was started in the first quarter of 2003. At December 31, 2004,
there was approximately $84 million in deferred compensation related to unit grants.
Under the unit plan, fixed grants will be awarded annually to certain employees.

Under the Stock Purchase Plan in 2004, eligible employees were able to purchase our
Class A Common Stock through payroll deductions at the lower of the market value at
the beginning or end of each plan year.
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Employee stock options may be granted to officers and key employees at exercise
prices equal to the market price of our Class A Common Stock on the date of grant.
Nonqualified options expire 10 years after the date of grant, except those issued from
1990 through 2000, which expire 15 years after the date of the grant. Most options
under the Stock Option Program are exercisable in cumulative installments of one
quarter at the end of each of the first four years following the date of grant. In February
1997, 2.2 million Supplemental Executive Stock Option awards were awarded to certain
of our officers. The options vest after eight years but could vest earlier if our stock price
meets certain performance criteria. None of these options, which have an exercise price
of $25, were exercised during 2004, 2003 or 2002, and 1.9 million remained outstand-
ing at December 31, 2004.

For the purposes of the disclosures required by FAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation,” the fair value of each option granted during 2004, 2003 and
2002 was $17, $11 and $14, respectively. We estimated the fair value of each option
granted on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing method, using the
assumptions noted in the following table:

2004 2003 2002

Annual dividends  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $0.32 $0.30 $0.28

Expected volatility  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31% 32% 32%

Risk-free interest rate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3.7% 3.5% 3.6%

Expected life (in years) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 7 7

Pro forma compensation cost for the Stock Option Program, the Supplemental
Executive Stock Option awards and employee purchases pursuant to the Stock Purchase
Plan subsequent to December 30, 1994, would reduce our net income as described in
the “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” as required by FAS No. 148,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure, an amendment
of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statement No. 123.”

A summary of our Stock Option Program activity during 2004, 2003 and 2002 is
presented below:

Number of Options Weighted Average
(in millions) Exercise Price

Outstanding at December 29, 2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 38.3 $29

Granted during the year  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.4 37

Exercised during the year  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1.6) 22

Forfeited during the year  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (0.6) 37

Outstanding at January 3, 2003 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 37.5 29

Granted during the year  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4.0 30

Exercised during the year  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4.6) 22

Forfeited during the year  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (0.7) 37

Outstanding at January 2, 2004 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 36.2 29

Granted during the year  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.8 46

Exercised during the year  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (7.3) 30

Forfeited during the year  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (0.3) 38

Outstanding at December 31, 2004 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30.4 $31

There were 22.0 million, 25.1 million and 24.9 million exercisable options under the
Stock Option Program at December 31, 2004, January 2, 2004, and January 3, 2003,
respectively, with weighted average exercise prices of $29, $28 and $25, respectively.

At December 31, 2004, 47.0 million shares were reserved under the Comprehensive
Plan (including 32.3 million shares under the Stock Option Program and Supplemental
Executive Stock Option awards), and 5.5 million shares were reserved under the Stock
Purchase Plan.

Stock options issued under the Stock Option Program outstanding at December 31,
2004, were as follows:
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Outstanding Exercisable
Weighted Average

Range of Number of Options Remaining Life Weighted Average Number of Options Weighted Average
Exercise Prices (in millions) (in Years) Exercise Price (in millions) Exercise Price

$ 3 to 5 0.4 1 $ 3 0.4 $ 3

6 to 9 1.2 3 7 1.2 7

10 to 15 1.6 5 13 1.6 13

16 to 24 1.1 6 17 1.1 17

25 to 37 18.7 8 31 13.8 31

38 to 49 7.4 8 45 3.9 44

$ 3 to 49 30.4 8 $31 22.0 $29



16 FA I R  VA LU E  O F  F I NA N C I A L  I N S T RU M E N T S
We believe that the fair values of current assets and current liabilities approximate their
reported carrying amounts. The fair values of noncurrent financial assets, liabilities and
derivatives are shown below.

2004 2003
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

($ in millions) Amount Value Amount Value

Notes and other long-term assets . . . . . $1,702 $1,770 $1,740 $1,778

Long-term debt and other 
long-term liabilities  . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 848 $ 875 $1,373 $1,487

Derivative instruments  . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ — $ (1) $ (1)

We value notes and other receivables based on the expected future cash flows dis-
counted at risk-adjusted rates. We determine valuations for long-term debt and other
long-term liabilities based on quoted market prices or expected future payments dis-
counted at risk-adjusted rates.

17 D E R I VAT I V E  I N S T RU M E N T S
During the year ended January 2, 2004, we entered into an interest rate swap agreement
under which we receive a floating rate of interest and pay a fixed rate of interest. The
swap modifies our interest rate exposure by effectively converting a note receivable with
a fixed rate to a floating rate. The aggregate notional amount of the swap is $92 mil-
lion, and it matures in 2010. The swap is classified as a fair value hedge, and the change
in the fair value of the swap, as well as the change in the fair value of the underlying
note receivable, is recognized in interest income. The fair value of the swap was a liabil-
ity of approximately $3 million at December 31, 2004, and January 2, 2004. The hedge
is highly effective, and therefore, no net gain or loss was reported in earnings during
the years ended December 31, 2004, and January 2, 2004.

At December 31, 2004, we had six outstanding interest rate swap agreements to
manage interest rate risk associated with the residual interests we retain in conjunction
with our timeshare note sales. We are required by purchasers and/or rating agencies to
utilize interest rate swaps to protect the excess spread within our sold note pools. The
aggregate notional amount of the swaps is $535 million, and they expire through 2022.
These swaps are not accounted for as hedges under FAS No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” The fair value of the swaps is a net
asset of approximately $3 million at December 31, 2004, a net asset of approximately 
$1 million at January 2, 2004, and a net liability of $2 million at January 3, 2003. We
recorded a $2 million net gain, $3 million net gain and $21 million net loss during 
the years ended December 31, 2004, January 2, 2004 and January 3, 2003, respectively.
These expenses were largely offset by income resulting from the change in fair value 
of the retained interests and note sale gains in response to changes in interest rates.

During the years ended December 31, 2004, and January 2, 2004, we entered into
interest rate swaps to manage interest rate risk associated with forecasted timeshare
note sales. These swaps were not accounted for as hedges under FAS No. 133. The
swaps were terminated upon the sale of the notes and resulted in a gain of $2 million
during the year ended December 31, 2004, and a loss of $4 million during the year
ended January 2, 2004. These amounts were largely offset by changes in the note sale
gains and losses.

During the years ended December 31, 2004, and January 2, 2004, we entered into
forward foreign exchange contracts to manage the foreign currency exposure related to
certain monetary assets denominated in pounds sterling. The aggregate dollar equiva-
lent of the notional amount of the contracts is $36 million at December 31, 2004. The
forward exchange contracts are not accounted for as hedges in accordance with FAS
No. 133. The fair value of the forward contracts is approximately zero at December 31,
2004, and January 2, 2004. We recorded a $3 million and $2 million net loss relating to
these forward foreign exchange contracts for the years ended December 31, 2004 and
January 2, 2004, respectively. The net losses for both years were offset by income
recorded from translating the related monetary assets denominated in pounds sterling
into U.S. dollars.

During fiscal years 2004 and 2003, we entered into foreign exchange option and
forward contracts to hedge the potential volatility of earnings and cash flows associated
with variations in foreign exchange rates. The aggregate dollar equivalent of the
notional amounts of the contracts is $36 million at December 31, 2004. These contracts
have terms of less than a year and are classified as cash flow hedges. Changes in their
fair values are recorded as a component of other comprehensive income. The fair value
of the forward contracts is approximately zero and $1 million at December 31, 2004,
and January 2, 2004, respectively. During 2004, it was determined that certain deriva-
tives were no longer effective in offsetting the hedged item. Thus, cash flow hedge
accounting treatment was discontinued and the ineffective contracts resulted in a loss
of $1 million, which was reported in earnings for fiscal year 2004. The remaining
hedges were highly effective and there was no net gain or loss reported in earnings for
the fiscal years 2004 and 2003. As of December 31, 2004, there were no deferred gains
or losses accumulated in other comprehensive income that we expect to reclassify into
earnings over the next 12 months.

18 C O N T I N G E N C I E S

Guarantees
We issue guarantees to certain lenders and hotel owners primarily to obtain long-term
management contracts. The guarantees generally have a stated maximum amount of
funding and a term of five years or less. The terms of guarantees to lenders generally
require us to fund if cash flows from hotel operations are inadequate to cover annual
debt service or to repay the loan at the end of the term. The terms of the guarantees to
hotel owners generally require us to fund if the hotels do not attain specified levels of
operating profit.
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We also enter into project completion guarantees with certain lenders in conjunc-
tion with hotels and timeshare units that we or our joint venture partners are building.

The maximum potential amount of future fundings for guarantees where we are the
primary obligor and the carrying amount of the liability for expected future fundings
at December 31, 2004, are as follows:

Maximum Liability for Future 
Potential Amount Fundings at

Guarantee Type of Future Fundings December 31, 2004

($ in millions)

Debt service . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $227 $ 4

Operating profit  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 276 14

Project completion  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 52 —

Other  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 46 5

Total guarantees where Marriott International 
is the primary obligor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $601 $23

Our guarantees of $601 million listed above include $91 million for guarantees that
will not be in effect until the underlying hotels open and we begin to manage the prop-
erties. The $91 million of guarantees not in effect is comprised of $72 million of oper-
ating profit guarantees and $19 million of debt service guarantees. Guarantee fundings
to lenders and hotel owners are generally recoverable as loans and are generally
repayable to us out of future hotel cash flows and/or proceeds from the sale of hotels.

In addition to the guarantees noted above, in conjunction with financing obtained
for specific projects or properties owned by joint ventures in which we are a party, we
may provide industry standard indemnifications to the lender for loss, liability or dam-
age occurring as a result of the actions of the other joint venture owner or our own
actions, in each case limited to the lesser of (i) our ownership interest in the entity or
(ii) the actual loss, liability or damage occurring as a result of our actions.

The guarantees above do not include $349 million related to Senior Living Services
lease obligations and lifecare bonds for which we are secondarily liable. Sunrise is the
primary obligor of the leases and a portion of the lifecare bonds, and CNL is the pri-
mary obligor of the remainder of the lifecare bonds. Prior to the sale of the Senior
Living Services business at the end of the first quarter of 2003, these pre-existing guar-
antees were guarantees by the Company of obligations of consolidated Senior Living
Services subsidiaries. Sunrise and CNL have indemnified us for any guarantee fundings
we may be called on to make in connection with these lease obligations and lifecare
bonds. We do not expect to fund under the guarantees.

The guarantees above also do not include lease obligations for which we became
secondarily liable when we acquired the Renaissance Hotel Group N.V. in 1997, consist-
ing of annual rent payments of approximately $63 million and total remaining rent
payments through the initial term plus available extensions of approximately $1.56 bil-
lion. We are also secondarily obligated for real estate taxes and other charges associated
with the leases. Third parties have severally indemnified us for all payments we may be
required to make in connection with these obligations. Since we assumed these guaran-
tees, we have not funded any amounts, and we do not expect to fund any amounts
under these guarantees in the future.

Commitments and Letters of Credit
In addition to the guarantees noted above, as of December 31, 2004, we had extended
approximately $42 million of loan commitments to owners of lodging properties,
under which we expect to fund approximately $12 million by December 30, 2005,
and $14 million over the following year. We do not expect to fund the remaining 
$16 million of commitments, which expire as follows: $14 million within one year and
$2 million after five years. At December 31, 2004, we also have commitments to invest
$37 million of equity for a minority interest in two partnerships that plan to purchase
both full-service and select-service hotels in the U.S.

At December 31, 2004, we also had $96 million of letters of credit outstanding on
our behalf, the majority of which related to our self-insurance programs. Surety bonds
issued on our behalf as of December 31, 2004, totaled $486 million, the majority of
which were requested by federal, state or local governments related to our timeshare
and lodging operations and self-insurance programs.

Litigation and Arbitration
CTF/HPI arbitration and litigation. On April 8, 2002, we initiated an arbitration pro-
ceeding against CTF Hotel Holdings, Inc. (“CTF”) and its affiliate, Hotel Property
Investments (B.V.I.) Ltd. (“HPI”), in connection with a dispute over procurement and
other issues for certain Renaissance hotels and resorts that we manage for CTF and HPI.
On April 12, 2002, CTF filed a lawsuit in U.S. District Court in Delaware against us and
Avendra LLC, alleging that, in connection with procurement at 20 of those hotels, we
engaged in improper acts of self-dealing, and claiming breach of fiduciary, contractual
and other duties; fraud; misrepresentation; and violations of the RICO and the
Robinson-Patman Acts. CTF seeks various remedies, including a stay of the arbitration
proceedings against CTF and unspecified actual, treble and punitive damages. The dis-
trict court enjoined the arbitration with respect to CTF, but granted our request to stay
the court proceedings pending the resolution of the arbitration with respect to HPI.
Both parties have appealed that ruling. The arbitration panel hearing on the matter
began on April 6, 2004, and concluded on June 11, 2004. Briefing has been concluded.
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In a decision dated August 23, 2004, a panel of the Third Circuit affirmed the district
court’s stay of the arbitration as to CTF but reversed the district court’s stay of the trial.
On September 7, 2004, we filed with the Third Circuit a petition for rehearing en banc
in which we asked the court to reconsider its decision vacating the stay of the trial. The
petition was denied on September 24, 2004. No scheduling order has been entered by
the district court.

We believe that CTF’s and HPI’s claims against us are without merit, and we intend
to vigorously defend against them. However, we cannot assure you as to the outcome of
the arbitration or the related litigation; nor can we currently estimate the range of any
potential losses to the Company.

19 B U S I N E S S  S E G M E N T S
We are a diversified hospitality company with operations in five business segments:

3 Full-Service Lodging, which includes Marriott Hotels & Resorts, The Ritz-Carlton,
Renaissance Hotels & Resorts and Bulgari Hotels & Resorts;

3 Select-Service Lodging, which includes Courtyard, Fairfield Inn and 
SpringHill Suites;

3 Extended-Stay Lodging, which includes Residence Inn, TownePlace Suites,
Marriott ExecuStay and Marriott Executive Apartments;

3 Timeshare, which includes the development, marketing, operation and ownership
of timeshare properties under the Marriott Vacation Club International,
The Ritz-Carlton Club, Marriott Grand Residence Club and Horizons by
Marriott Vacation Club International brands; and

3 Synthetic Fuel, which includes our interest in the operation of coal-based
synthetic fuel production facilities.

In addition to the segments above, in 2002 we announced our intent to sell, and
subsequently did sell, our Senior Living Services business segment and exited our
Distribution Services business segment.

We evaluate the performance of our segments based primarily on the results of the
segment without allocating corporate expenses, interest expense and interest income.
With the exception of the Synthetic Fuel segment, we do not allocate income taxes to
our segments. The synthetic fuel operation generated a tax benefit and credits of $165
million, $245 million and $208 million, respectively, for the years ended December 31,
2004, January 2, 2004, and January 3, 2003, from our synthetic fuel joint venture. As
timeshare note sales are an integral part of the timeshare business, we include time-
share note sale gains in our timeshare segment results, and we allocate other gains as
well as equity in earnings (losses) from our joint ventures to each of our segments.

We have aggregated the brands and businesses presented within each of our seg-
ments considering their similar economic characteristics, types of customers, distribu-
tion channels and the regulatory business environment of the brands and operations
within each segment.

Revenues

($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002

Full-Service  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 6,611 $5,876 $5,508

Select-Service  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,118 1,000 967

Extended-Stay  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 547 557 600

Timeshare  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,502 1,279 1,147

Total Lodging  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,778 8,712 8,222

Synthetic Fuel  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 321 302 193

$10,099 $9,014 $8,415

Income from Continuing Operations

($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002

Full-Service  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 426 $ 407 $ 397

Select-Service  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 140 99 130

Extended-Stay  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 66 47 (3)

Timeshare  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 203 149 183

Total Lodging financial results . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 835 702 707

Synthetic Fuel (after-tax)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 107 96 74

Unallocated corporate expenses  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (138) (132) (126)

Interest income, provision for loan losses 
and interest expense  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 55 12 24

Income taxes (excluding Synthetic Fuel)  . . . . . . . . . . . (265) (202) (240)

$ 594 $ 476 $ 439

Equity in Earnings (Losses) of Equity Method Investees

($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002

Full-Service  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 10 $ 8 $ 5

Select-Service  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (17) (22) (8)

Timeshare  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (7) (4) (2)

Synthetic Fuel  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (28) 10 —

Corporate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 1 (1)

$(42) $ (7) $(6)

Depreciation and Amortization

($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002

Full-Service  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 64 $ 54 $ 54

Select-Service  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 10 9

Extended-Stay  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9 10 10

Timeshare  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 49 49 38

Total Lodging  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 134 123 111

Corporate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 29 31

Synthetic Fuel  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 8 8

Discontinued operations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 37

$166 $160 $187
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Assets

($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002

Full-Service . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,230 $3,436 $3,423

Select-Service  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 817 833 771

Extended-Stay  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 241 286 274

Timeshare  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,321 2,350 2,225

Total Lodging  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,609 6,905 6,693

Corporate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,943 1,189 911

Synthetic Fuel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 116 83 59

Discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 633

$8,668 $8,177 $8,296

Equity Method Investments

($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002

Full-Service . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $120 $310 $327

Select-Service  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 77 95 114

Timeshare  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31 22 13

Total Lodging  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 228 427 454

Corporate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21 41 21

$249 $468 $475

Goodwill

($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002

Full-Service . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $851 $851 $851

Select-Service  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — —

Extended-Stay  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 72 72 72

Timeshare  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — —

Total Lodging $923 $923 $923

Capital Expenditures

($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002

Full-Service . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 95 $ 93 $138

Select-Service  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 38 23

Extended-Stay  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 3 39

Timeshare  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 38 45 36

Total Lodging  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 150 179 236

Corporate  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31 16 20

Synthetic Fuel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 7

Discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 15 29

$181 $210 $292

Segment expenses include selling expenses directly related to the operations of
the businesses, aggregating $454 million in 2004, $452 million in 2003 and $421 mil-
lion in 2002. Approximately 94 percent of the selling expenses are related to our
Timeshare segment.

The consolidated financial statements include the following related to international
operations: sales of $968 million in 2004, $711 million in 2003 and $584 million in
2002; financial results of $140 million in 2004, $102 million in 2003 and $94 million in
2002; and fixed assets of $358 million in 2004, $336 million in 2003 and $256 million
in 2002. No individual country, other than the United States, constitutes a material por-
tion of our sales, financial results or fixed assets.

20 R E L AT E D  PA RT Y  T R A N S AC T I O N S
We have equity method investments in entities that own properties where we provide
management and/or franchise services and receive a fee. In addition, in some cases we
provide loans, preferred equity or guarantees to these entities. Our ownership interest
in these equity method investments generally varies from 10 to 50 percent. The follow-
ing tables present financial data resulting from transactions with these related parties:

Income Statement Data

($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002

Base management fees  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 72 $ 56 $ 48

Incentive management fees  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 4 4

Cost reimbursements  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 802 699 557

Owned, leased, corporate housing and other revenue . . 29 28 26

Total revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 911 $ 787 $ 635

General, administrative and other  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (33) $ (11) $ (11)

Reimbursed costs  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (802) (699) (557)

Gains and other income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19 21 44

Interest income  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 74 77 66

Reversal of (provision for) loan losses  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 (2) (5)

Equity in earnings (losses)—synthetic fuel . . . . . . . . . . (28) 10 —

Equity in earnings (losses)—other  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (14) (17) (6)

Balance Sheet Data

($ in millions) 2004 2003

Current assets—accounts and notes receivable  . . . . . . $ 72 $ 118

Contract acquisition costs  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 42

Equity method investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 249 468

Loans to equity method investees  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 526 558

Other long-term receivables  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 —

Other long-term assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 38 30

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3) (2)

Other payables and accruals  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4) (1)

Other long-term liabilities  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (11) (10)
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Summarized information relating to the entities in which we have equity method
investments is as follows:

Income Statement Summary

($ in millions) 2004 2003 2002

Sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,617 $1,487 $1,322

Net loss  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $    (69) $ (102) $ (59)

Balance Sheet Summary

($ in millions) 2004 2003

Assets (primarily comprised of hotel 
real estate managed by us)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,834 $4,171

Liabilities  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,223 $3,275

21 VA R I A B L E  I N T E R E S T  E N T I T I E S
FIN 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (“the Interpretation”), was effec-
tive for all enterprises with variable interests in variable interest entities created after
January 31, 2003. FIN 46(R), which was revised in December 2003, was effective for all
entities to which the provisions of FIN 46 were not applied as of December 24, 2003.
We applied the provisions of FIN 46(R) to all entities subject to the Interpretation as of
March 26, 2004. Under FIN 46(R), if an entity is determined to be a variable interest
entity, it must be consolidated by the enterprise that absorbs the majority of the entity’s
expected losses, receives a majority of the entity’s expected residual returns, or both, the
“primary beneficiary.”

As a result of adopting FIN 46(R), we consolidated our two synthetic fuel joint
ventures as of March 26, 2004. At December 31, 2004, the ventures had working capital
of $6 million, and the book value of the synthetic fuel facilities (“the Facilities”) was
$29 million. The ventures have no long-term debt. See Footnote No. 7, “Synthetic Fuel,”
of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional disclosure related to
our synthetic fuel operation, including the nature, purpose and size of the two syn-
thetic fuel joint ventures, as well as the nature of our involvement and the timing of
when our involvement began.

We currently consolidate four other entities that are variable interest entities 
under FIN 46(R). These entities were established with the same partner to lease four
Marriott-branded hotels. The combined capital in the four variable interest entities is
$3 million, which is used primarily to fund hotel working capital. Our equity at risk is
$2 million, and we hold 55 percent of the common equity shares.

We have one other significant interest in an entity that is a variable interest entity
under FIN 46(R). In February 2001, we entered into a shareholders’ agreement with an
unrelated third party to form a joint venture to own and lease luxury hotels to be
managed by us. In February 2002, the joint venture signed its first lease with a third-
party landlord. The initial capital structure of the joint venture is $4 million of debt
and $4 million of equity. We hold 35 percent of the equity, or $1 million, and 65 per-
cent of the debt, or $3 million, for a total investment of $4 million. In addition, each
equity partner entered into various guarantees with the landlord to guarantee lease
payments. Our total exposure under these guarantees is $17 million. Our maximum
exposure to loss is $21 million. We do not consolidate the joint venture since we do
not bear the majority of the expected losses or expected residual returns.
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QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA — UNAUDITED

Fiscal Year 2004 1, 3

First Second Third Fourth Fiscal
($ in millions, except per share data) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year

Revenues 2 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2,252 $2,402 $2,304 $3,141 $10,099

Operating income 2  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 151 $ 118 $ 99 $ 109 $ 477

Income from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 114 $ 160 $ 132 $ 188 $ 594

Discontinued operations, after tax  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 1 1 2

Net income  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 114 $ 160 $ 133 $ 189 $ 596

Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $    .47 $    .67 $    .55 $    .79 $    2.47

Diluted earnings (losses) per share from discontinued operations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — .01 — .01

Diluted earnings per share  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ .47 $ .67 $ .56 $ .79 $ 2.48

Fiscal Year 2003 1, 3

First Second Third Fourth Fiscal
($ in millions, except per share data) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year

Revenues 2 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $2,023 $2,016 $2,109 $2,866 $ 9,014

Operating income 2  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 58 $ 68 $ 90 $ 161 $ 377

Income from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 87 $ 126 $ 93 $ 170 $ 476

Discontinued operations, after tax  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29 (1) (1) (1) 26

Net income (loss)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 116 $ 125 $ 92 $ 169 $ 502

Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ .36 $ .52 $ .38 $ .69 $ 1.94

Diluted earnings (losses) per share from discontinued operations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .12 (.01) (.01) — .11

Diluted earnings (losses) per share  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ .48 $ .51 $ .37 $ .69 $ 2.05

1 The quarters consisted of 12 weeks, except for the fourth quarter, which consisted of 16 weeks.
2 Balances reflect Senior Living Services and Distribution Services businesses as discontinued operations.
3 The sum of the earnings per share for the four quarters differs from annual earnings per share due to the required method of computing the weighted average shares in interim periods.
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The following table presents a summary of selected historical financial data for the Company derived from our financial statements as of and for the five fiscal
years ended December 31, 2004.

Since the information in this table is only a summary and does not provide all of the information contained in our financial statements, including the related
notes, you should read “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Fiscal Year 2

($ in millions, except per share data) 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Income Statement Data:
Revenues1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $10,099 $9,014 $8,415 $7,768 $7,911

Operating income1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 477 $ 377 $ 321 $ 420 $ 762

Income from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 594 $ 476 $ 439 $ 269 $ 490
Discontinued operations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 26 (162) (33) (11)

Net income  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 596 $ 502 $ 277 $ 236 $ 479

Per Share Data:
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.47 $ 1.94 $ 1.74 $ 1.05 $ 1.93
Diluted earnings (loss) per share from discontinued operations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .01 .11 (.64) (.13) (.04)

Diluted earnings per share  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.48 $ 2.05 $ 1.10 $ .92 $ 1.89

Cash dividends declared per share  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ .330 $ .295 $ .275 $ .255 $ .235

Balance Sheet Data (at end of year):
Total assets  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 8,668 $8,177 $8,296 $9,107 $8,237
Long-term debt1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 836 1,391 1,553 2,708 1,908
Shareholders’ equity  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,081 3,838 3,573 3,478 3,267

Other Data:
Base management fees1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 435 388 379 372 383
Incentive management fees 1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 142 109 162 202 316
Franchise fees1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 296 245 232 220 208

1 Balances reflect our Senior Living Services and Distribution Services businesses as discontinued operations.
2 All fiscal years included 52 weeks, except for 2002, which included 53 weeks.
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Return on Invested Capital (ROIC) of 14.1 percent (excluding our synthetic fuel operation) referenced on page 4 of this report is calculated as earnings before
income taxes and interest expense (EBIT), excluding the synthetic fuel operation, divided by average capital investment. ROIC is a financial measure that is not
presented in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. We consider ROIC (excluding our synthetic fuel operation) to be a meaningful indica-
tor of our operating performance because it measures how effectively we use the money invested in our lodging operations. However, ROIC should not be consid-
ered an alternative to net income, income from continuing operations or any other operating measure prescribed by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

The reconciliation of income from continuing operations to earnings before income taxes and interest expense is as follows:

Full Year 2004 Full Year 2003
Income from Income from
Continuing Synthetic Fuel Excluding Continuing Synthetic Fuel Excluding

($ in millions) Operations Impact Synthetic Fuel Operations Impact Synthetic Fuel
Income from continuing operations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $594 $ 107 $487 $476 $ 96 $380

Add:

Provision (benefit) for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . 100 (165) 265 (43) (245) 202

Tax benefit included in minority interest . . . . . . . . — — — 94 94 —

Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 99 — 99 110 — 110

Timeshare interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21 — 21 21 — 21

Earnings before income taxes and interest expense. . . . . . $814 $ (58) $872 $658 $ (55) $713

The reconciliation of assets to invested capital is as follows:

Full Year 2004 Full Year 2003
Synthetic Fuel Excluding Synthetic Fuel Excluding

($ in millions) Total Impact Synthetic Fuel Total Impact Synthetic Fuel
Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 8,668 $116 $ 8,552 $ 8,177 $ 83 $ 8,094

Add: cumulative goodwill amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . 128 — 128 128 — 128

Less:

Current liabilities, net of current 
portion of long-term debt. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,867) (76) (1,791) (1,706) (16) (1,690)

Deferred tax assets, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (559) — (559) (466) — (466)

Timeshare capitalized interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (21) — (21) (22) — (22)

Invested capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 6,349 $40 $ 6,309 $ 6,111 $ 67 $ 6,044

Average capital investment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 6,230 $54 $ 6,177

Return on invested capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14.1%
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Management of Marriott International is responsible for the integrity and objectivity of
the consolidated financial statements and other financial information presented in this
annual report. In meeting this responsibility, we maintain a highly developed system of
internal controls, policies and procedures, including an internal auditing function.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP,
independent registered public accounting firm. The firm’s report expresses an informed
judgment as to whether management’s financial statements, considered in their
entirety, fairly present our financial position, operating results and cash flows in con-
formity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors pursues its responsibility for the financial statements
through its Audit Committee, composed of four directors not otherwise employed 
by the company. The committee meets a minimum of four times during the year with
the independent registered public accounting firm, representatives of management
and the internal auditors to review the scope and results of the internal and external
audits, the accounting principles applied in financial reporting, and financial and
operational controls. The independent registered public accounting firm and internal
auditors have unrestricted access to the Audit Committee, with or without the pres-
ence of management.

Management of Marriott International, Inc. (the “Company”) is responsible for estab-
lishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting and for the
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. As defined
by the Securities and Exchange Commission, internal control over financial reporting is
a process designed by, or under the supervision of the Company’s principal executive
and principal financial officers and effected by the Company’s Board of Directors, man-
agement and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is supported by written poli-
cies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the Company’s transactions and dispositions of the
Company’s assets; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of the Company’s
management and directors; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not
prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

In connection with the preparation of the Company’s annual consolidated financial
statements, management has undertaken an assessment of the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO
Framework). Management’s assessment included an evaluation of the design of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting and testing of the operational
effectiveness of those controls.

Based on this assessment, management has concluded that as of December 31, 2004,
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective to provide reason-
able assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited
the Company’s consolidated financial statements included in this report, have issued an
attestation report on management’s assessment of internal control over financial
reporting, a copy of which appears on the next page of this annual report.



The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Marriott International, Inc.:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that Marriott
International, Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (“the COSO criteria”). Marriott International, Inc.’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsi-
bility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effec-
tiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal con-
trol over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating man-
agement’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to pro-
vide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the prepa-
ration of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are

To the Shareholders of Marriott International, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Marriott
International, Inc. as of December 31, 2004 and January 2, 2004, and the related consol-
idated statements of income, cash flows, comprehensive income and shareholders’
equity for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended December 31, 2004. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our respon-
sibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial state-
ments are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
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recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not
prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Marriott International, Inc. main-
tained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is
fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO criteria. Also, in our opinion,
Marriott International, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal con-
trol over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheet of Marriott
International, Inc. as of December 31, 2004 and January 2, 2004, and the related consol-
idated statements of income, cash flows, comprehensive income and shareholders’
equity for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended December 31, 2004 of
Marriott International, Inc. and our report dated February 21, 2005 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.

McLean, Virginia
February 21, 2005

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Marriott International, Inc. as of
December 31, 2004 and January 2, 2004, and the consolidated results of its operations and
its cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended December 31, 2004, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of Marriott International, Inc.’s internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 21, 2005
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

McLean, Virginia
February 21, 2005
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AMY C. MCPHERSON
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SCOTT E. MELBY
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Development Planning and Feasibility

ROBERT A. MILLER
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PAMELA G. MURRAY
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Enterprise Accounting Services

DARYL A. NICKEL

Executive Vice President – Lodging Development
Select-Service and Extended-Stay Brands

LAURA E. PAUGH

Senior Vice President – Investor Relations

M. LESTER PULSE, JR.

Executive Vice President – Taxes

DAVID A. RODRIGUEZ5

Executive Vice President
Lodging Human Resources

EDWARD A. RYAN

Senior Vice President and
Associate General Counsel

DAVID M. SAMPSON5

Senior Vice President – Diversity Initiatives

CHARLOTTE B. STERLING5

Executive Vice President – Communications

STEPHEN P. WEISZ†

President
Marriott Vacation Club International

CARL WILSON
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Chief Information Officer

BRUCE W. WOLFF

Executive Vice President
Distribution Sales and Strategy
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CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
Marriott International, Inc.
Marriott Drive
Washington, D.C. 20058
301/380-3000
Internet: Marriott.com

COMMON STOCK LISTINGS
The company’s Class A common stock (ticker symbol: MAR) is
listed on the New York Stock Exchange and other exchanges.

SHAREHOLDERS OF RECORD
48,282 at February 10, 2005

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT
Shareholder inquiries regarding stock transfers, dividend pay-
ments, address changes, enrollment in the company’s direct
investment plan, lost stock certificates, or other stock account
matters should be directed to:

EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.
66 Brooks Drive
Braintree, Mass. 02184
800/311-4816 (U.S. and Canada)
781/575-2720 (International)
Internet: equiserve.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS
For information, call: 301/380-6500
Internet: Marriott.com/investor

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC 
ACCOUNTING FIRM
Ernst & Young LLP
McLean, Va.

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
May 6, 2005 — 10:30 a.m.
JW Marriott Hotel
1331 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Washington, D.C.

COMMON STOCK PRICES AND DIVIDENDS

Dividends
Stock Price Declared

High Low Per Share

2004 – First quarter .......................... $46.80 $40.64 $0.075
– Second quarter...................... 51.50 41.82 0.085
– Third quarter ........................ 50.48 44.95 0.085
– Fourth quarter ...................... 63.99 48.15 0.085

2003 – First quarter .......................... $34.89 $28.55 $0.070
– Second quarter...................... 40.44 31.23 0.075
– Third quarter ........................ 41.59 37.66 0.075
– Fourth quarter ...................... 47.20 40.04 0.075

TELEPHONE NUMBERS
For reservations or information, call:

Marriott Hotels & Resorts ........................................ 800/228-9290
Marriott Conference Centers.................................... 800/453-0309
Renaissance Hotels & Resorts................................... 800/468-3571
The Ritz-Carlton Hotel Company, L.L.C................. 800/241-3333
Bulgari Hotels & Resorts........................................... 301/547-4900
JW Marriott Hotels & Resorts .................................. 800/228-9290
Courtyard .................................................................. 800/321-2211
SpringHill Suites........................................................ 888/287-9400
Fairfield Inn ............................................................... 800/228-2800
Residence Inn ............................................................ 800/331-3131
TownePlace Suites ..................................................... 800/257-3000
Marriott Executive Apartments................................ 800/800-5744
Marriott ExecuStay.................................................... 800/800-5744
Marriott Vacation Club International...................... 800/332-1333
Horizons by Marriott Vacation Club ....................... 888/220-2086
Marriott Grand Residence Club............................... 866/204-7263
The Ritz-Carlton Club .............................................. 800/941-4386

LODGING DEVELOPMENT INQUIRIES
North America

Full-Service.......................................................... 301/380-3200
Select-Service and Extended-Stay ...................... 301/380-5237

Latin America ............................................................ 301/380-2340
Europe, the Middle East and Africa................. 011-411-723-5100
Asia/Pacific ....................................................... 011-852-2521-1848

CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATIONS
As required by the New York Stock Exchange listing rules, our
Chief Executive Officer certified to the New York Stock Exchange
on May 25, 2004, that he was not aware of any violation by the
company of the New York Stock Exchange listing standards as of
that date. In addition, our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief
Financial Officer have provided certifications with respect to the
company’s public disclosure as required under Rule 13a-14(a) and
Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act, which certifications
were filed as Exhibits 31.1, 31.2 and 32 to the company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year 2004 filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission.

OTHER INFORMATION
Any shareholder who would like a copy of the company’s 
Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year 2004 may obtain one,
without charge, by addressing a request to the Secretary, Marriott
International, Inc., Department 52/862, Marriott Drive, Washington,
D.C. 20058. The company’s copying costs will be charged if copies
of exhibits to the Annual Report on Form 10-K are requested. You
may also obtain a copy of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for
fiscal year 2004, including exhibits, from the company’s web site at
Marriott.com/investor and click on “Corporate Information and
SEC Filings.”
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Internet Users: You are invited to learn more about Marriott’s business and growth opportunities at Marriott.com/investor. Our investor site includes investor presentations, earnings conference calls, press
releases, company history, and information about the company’s governance and board of directors. You may also enroll in our dividend reinvestment plan.

Shareholders may also elect to receive notices of shareholder meetings, proxy materials and annual reports electronically through the internet. If your shares are registered in your own name, and not in “street
name” through a broker or other nominee, contact our transfer agent, EquiServe Trust Company, N.A. at econsent.com/mar to consent to electronic delivery.

If your shares are registered in “street name” through a broker or other nominee, you must first vote your shares using the internet at proxyvote.com, and immediately after voting, fill out the consent form that
appears on-screen at the end of the voting procedure.
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MARRIOT T INTERNATIONAL, INC.

100 Best Companies to Work For and One of America’s Most Admired Companies (Fortune)

#1 in the Lodging Industry—Annual Lodging Report Card (NAACP)

50 Best Companies for Latinas to Work for in the U.S. (Latina Style)

100 Best Companies for Working Mothers (Working Mother)

Top 50 Companies for Diversity (DiversityInc)

Top Hospitality and Travel Company for Innovative Use of Technology (InformationWeek)

Best Upscale Hotel Chain (Entrepreneur)

Best Hotel Chain (Travel Weekly China)

THE RITZ-CARLTON® HOTEL COMPANY, L.L.C.

Best Luxury Hotel Chain (Executive Travel)

MARRIOT T® HOTELS & RESORTS

Highest ranked in upscale category (Business Travel News)

Best Domestic Hotel Chain (Travel Savvy)

COURT YARD BY MARRIOT T®

Highest ranked in mid-priced category (Business Travel News)

TOWNEPLACE SUITES BY MARRIOT T®

Highest ranked in upscale extended-stay category (Business Travel News)

MARRIOT T REWARDS®

Best Hotel Rewards Program (Business Traveler)

MARRIOT T VACATION CLUB SM INTERNATIONAL

Best Service Company To Sell For (Selling Power)
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